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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER
Dear Stakeholders,

As I sit to write this letter to you today, from my home office, and reflect on the state of affairs at
Ambit Finvest, I can say that, especially in the context of the carnage around us, your company is in a
very good space.

At one level, I have to admit that we have missed achieving several of the goals we had set out for
ourselves this year. Indeed, the environment that we encountered, even prior to COVID -19, was quite
turbulent.

Early on in the year, we realised that debt capital was not available to support our Structured Finance
business, and this is reflected in the shrinking of that book from Rs. 416 crores to Rs. 306 crores in the
course of the year.

On the other hand, our SME business continued to grow handsomely till March 2020, when of course
COVID -19 took over. Despite COVID -19, we ended the year growing that book by 44.1% from Rs.
351 crores to Rs. 509 crores. We also grew our branch network from 12 to 20, and our
employee headcount from 206 to 265. Our customer count has grown from 1,903 to 3,459.

We have had a big miss on our profitability target -- because of our inability to grow the Structured
Finance book, because of branch cost build - up ahead of actual disbursement volumes, and because
of elevated credit costs. We have adopted IndAS accounting for the first time this year, which
combined with the COVID impact, has resulted in credit costs increasing sharply. The good news
is that we are carrying forward provisions, which are 210% of our actual NPAs. Had we continued
with I-GAAP accounting, our profits would have been higher by Rs. 3 Crores.

If COVID — 19 was an 'Act of God' that has had a major negative impact on our business, the entry of
Mr. Adar Poonawalla into our Company as a shareholder, coming as he did in March this year, is no
less an 'Act of God'. Yes, we had planned to raise capital to support our growth plans, but surely the
timing of this transaction is reflective of divine intervention!

Earlier in the year, we had also issued our first Market Linked Debentures, as a conscious strategy to
diversify our liability franchise. We were delighted with the strong response to our maiden issue, and
will plan to develop this franchise further.

As I look at Ambit Finvest today, I see a relatively small, but highly nimble organisation, very well
capitalised and sitting on large cash reserves. In the coming year, we will no doubt have an elevated
credit cost, even as we work with our customers to help them get back on their feet. Our financial
position gives us the unique opportunity to evaluate an inorganic growth strategy in a marketplace that
we believe is ripe for consolidation.

I'am confident that we will be able to capture the opportunities that will emerge once we all get back
from our COVID-induced lockdown. Till then, please take care of yourselves and your families.

With my best wishes,

J oy

Sanjay Sakhuja
Executive Chairman

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T+ 91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2 006PTC163257.



SANJAY SAKHUJA

‘ ? Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director

Sanjay Sakhuja leads the Structured Finance, SME Finance and Principal Investment businesses at Ambit.
He joined Ambit as Managing Director in the Mergers and Acquisitions practice in August 2003, and
spearheaded the business from 2009 to 2013.

Prior to joining Ambit, Sanjay worked with Lazard, Arthur Andersen, Indal and Citibank. At Ambit, he has
worked across verticals, including Banking, Financial Services, Insurance, Auto, FMCG and Industrials,
and has advised numerous local and global clients on Mergers and Acquisitions, Divestitures and Fund-
raising transactions.

Sanjay is a qualified Chartered Accountant and has also completed an Advanced Management Program
from the Wharton Business School. He holds a B.A. (Hons) in Economics from St. Stephens College,
Delhi.

SANJAY AGARWAL

CEO and Whole Time Director

Sanjay Agarwal leads the SME Finance business at Ambit.

Sanjay Agarwal leads the SME Finance business at Ambit. Prior to joining Ambit, Sanjay set up
Finmax and sold the SME business to Ambit Finvest Private Limited. Sanjay has more than two
decades of rich experience in the SME lending space, having previously worked with Yes Bank as
Senior President & Business Head (Banking) for almost a decade and Standard Chartered Bank as
Head of Risk (SMEs). He also worked with Centurion Bank of Punjab and SBI Commercial &
International Bank Ltd. He was conferred with “Professional Achiever’s (Financial Sector) Award" in
2010 for his exceptional achievements as a professional by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India
(ICAI) and Certificate of Recognition for enhancing brand image of ICAI in 2015.

Sanjay is a Chartered Accountant (Rank holder) and Cost Accountant from The Institute of Cost and
Works Accountants of India and has a Bachelors degree in Commerce from Mohanlal Sukhadia
University.




VIKRANT NARANG

= Deputy CEO and Whole Time Director
o

Vikrant leads the Structured Finance businesses at Ambit. Vikrant has experience of nearly two
decades in financial services industry across corporate finance, debt and equity capital markets and in
structured capital raising solutions. Prior to joining Ambit, he was a senior member of the KKR
(NBFC) business where he originated and underwrote numerous lending transactions. Previously, he
was a Director at Barclays Capital (Investment Banking) where he was responsible for client coverage
across large Indian Groups, mid-market clients and Financial Sponsors. Vikrant also worked in
Investment Banking division at ABN AMRO Bank and PwC. Vikrant has managed relationships
across industries, and diligence and managed portfolios for several years while being part of KKR,
Barclays and ABN AMRO. Extensive specialized experience across structured credit, acquisition
financing, syndicated loans and corporate finance advisory in onshore and offshore markets.

Vikrant holds a Bachelor in Arts (BA) with honors in Economics from SRCC College, Delhi University.
He is also a qualified Chartered Accountant from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

SANJAY DHOKA

COO & CFO and Whole Time Dircetor

Sanjay Dhoka is COO & CFO and is responsible for overall Operations, Finance and Treasury functions.
He has over two decades of cross-functional experience and has been with Ambit since 2010. He has
worked on a wide spectrum of businesses ranging from NBFCs to Stock broking, and also across the
Manufacturing and Mining industries.

Prior to joining Ambit, Sanjay worked with Karvy Financial Services, Anand Rathi Group, Aditya Birla
Group and SOCGEN-Crosby Securities.

Sanjay has played an instrumental role in setting up the NBFC arm of Ambit and is also part of the board
of the business. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant and holds a Bachelors of Commerce degree from
the University of Ajmer, Rajasthan.




KM JAYARAO

Independent Director and Chairman of Risk Management Committee and
IT Strategy Committee

Mr. K M Jayarao is a retired Senior General Manager of ICICI Bank Ltd. He worked with the Bank for
over 35 years and has vast experience in credit underwriting, Risk management, Corporate Debt
Restructuring and Stressed asset management.

He was involved in the appraisal and monitoring of large and medium sized projects as a part of Project
Finance Group of ICICI Bank Limited. He has been the Relationship Manger with the Corporate Banking
Group and handled several large corporate relationships for more than 10 years. He headed the Special
Asset Management Group and the Strategic Solutions Group, which focused on handling stressed asset
portfolio of the Bank, creating innovative solutions to extract value from the stressed asset portfolio.

He was the nominee of the Bank on the Corporate Debt restructuring (CDR) Empowered Group and was
appointed as a Nominee Director of the Bank on several corporates and other assisted companies. He was
the nominee of the Bank on the Board of Asset Reconstruction Company of India Limited (ARCIL) as
well between June 2009 and June 2017. During his tenure on the Board of ARCIL he was also a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Trustee Committee and Capital raising Committee.

Post his retirement, He joined Ambit Flowers Asset Reconstruction Company Private Limited (a joint
venture with JC Flowers and Ambit) as the Executive Vice Chairman. He then resigned from the ARC in
February 2019.

K.M. Jayarao holds a Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Engineering and attended the management
programs conducted by University of Michigan School of Executive Education Centre and JP Morgan.

1| SHALINI KAMATH

Independent Director and Chairperson of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Shalini Kamath is an Independent Director on the Board of Abbott India Limited, Borosil Glassworks
Limited, Graphite India Limited. She is also on the Advisory Board of TRRAIN (Trust for Retailers
and Retail Associates of India). She has been the Chairperson for FICCI - Women on Corporate
Boards Mentorship program.

She has almost 15 years of experience in Human Resources Department and has worked with
organisations like Chevron Texaco India, Star India, KPMG India and Ambit Holdings. In addition,
her role in managing the Corporate Communications function at Ambit Holdings has given her the
experience in building a strong Corporate Brand, both externally and internally.

She is a MBA graduate from Edinburgh Business School, UK and was trained at Harvard Business
School in Change and Transformation. She has received various accolades in her career like: Iconic
Woman Creating a Better World for All by Women Economic Forum and Women Entrepreneurship



Award in the field of Management by Bharat Nirman in 2017 and Women Super Achiever Award
from India Human Capital in 2011.

She is a sought after speaker, evangelist and a voice against Domestic Violence and firmly believes in
continuous renewal to remain relevant in today’s time. She has co-authored - Breakthrough: Secrets
of growth, happiness and bounce backs from women around the world.

AMEET PARIKH

Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee

Mr. Ameet Parikh is the Managing Partner of Morphis Business Advisory, a successor to Tranzmute
Capital & Management, a company he co-founded in 2011. Ameet is a Chartered Accountant and a
Law graduate and has over 33 years of professional services experience.

After qualifying as a CA in 1984, Ameet started his career with Arthur Andersen during its startup
phase in India. He held leadership positions at Arthur Andersons and Ernst & Young.

Ameet founded Axis Risk Consulting, an independent and focused Risk Consulting organization,
which was acquired by Genpact (NYSE: G), a US$ 2.5 Billion company. Ameet continued to serve
as Axis’s Managing Director until 2010 and expanded the practice to Genpact’s global clients across
several countries.

Ameet has served companies principally, in the Health and Life Sciences, Manufacturing, Technology
Services, Business Process Outsourcing and Advertising industries.

SUNIL GULATI

Senior Advisor

Mr. Sunil Gulati is an external advisor to Ambit Finvest.

He has three decades of global experience in the banking industry across investment banking, corporate
finance, relationship management, risk management and corporate strategy.

He is the Chairman of Merisis Advisors and an Independent Director on the Boards of many reputed
financial institutes which includes eminent names like PNB Metlife India Insurance; SBI Mutual Fund
Trustee Co; Fincare Small Finance Bank; Varthana Finance etc. He is also a member of SEBI's Advisory
Committee on Mutual Funds and is a Charter Member of TiE, Mumbai and their Fintech Special Interest
Group. He is also a Senior Advisor to Adani Capital, MoneyTap, WEH Ventures and Kaizenvest.




He has been a key member of the management teams at RBL Bank Ltd, Yes Bank and ING Group at the
stage of their rapid growth and transformation and establishment as mainstream players in the Indian
Banking industry. His last role was as the Chief Risk Officer of RBL Bank Ltd.

Sunil holds a Post Graduate Diploma in Management from Indian Institute of Management (IIM),
Ahmedabad and a Bachelor in Technology (BTech) from Indian Institute of Technology (IIT), Delhi.




CORPORATE INFORMATION

STATUTORY AUDITOR
M/s. S R Batliboi & Co, LLP

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR
M/s D.M. Zaveri & Co

INTERNAL AUDITOR
M/s Aneja Associates

BANKERS

AU Small Finance Bank

Bank of Baroda

DCB Bank Limited

HDFC Bank Limited

Indusind Bank Limited

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited
State Bank of India
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Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To
The Members,
AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 14™ Annual Report of your Company together with
the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS / PERFORMANCE

The summary of the financial highlights for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and the previous
financial year ended March 31, 2019 is given below:

Current Year Previous Year
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
(Amt in Crores) (Amt in Crores)
Revenue from Operations 127,95 82.19
Other Income 1.83 441
Total Revenue 129.78 86.60
Less: Expenses 108.13 59.78
Profit Before Tax 21.65 26.81
Less: Tax Expense - -
- Current Tax - -
For the current year 7.00 4.10
Short/(excess) provision in respect of earlier
years 0.11 (0.26)
- Deferred Tax (1.42) 3.24
Profit for the year 15.96 19.73
Total other comprehensive income (0.05) (0.21)
Total comprehensive income for the year 15.91 19.53

As at 31st March 2020, the loan book size was Rs. 815 crores compared to Rs. 767 crores as at 31st
March 2019. The Gross Revenue has increased by around 49.86% at Rs. 129.78 crores for the year
ended 31st March 2020 compared to Rs. 86.60 crores for the year ended 31st March 2019. The net
profit after tax has reduced by 19.11% at Rs. 15.96 crores for the financial year ended March 31, 2020
as against Rs. 19.73 crores for the previous financial year.

The previous year figures are restated as per IndAS provisions.
LISTING OF NON-CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has issued and listed its first Principal Protected Market Linked Non-Convertible
Debentures (MLD) on Bombay Stock Exchange on March 6, 2020. The Company had launched the
said MLDs for Rs. 25 Crores with a green shoe option for another Rs. 25 Crores. While the Company
was expecting to raise ~ Rs. 30 Crores, the issue was oversubscribed and MLDs were raised Rs. 42.65
Crores.

The Company, in collaboration with the Global Private Client team of Ambit Group made the above
issuance of Market Linked Debentures successful.

Ambit Finvest Private Limited 1
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2 006PTC163257.
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FUND RAISING

The Company had further raised equity capital amounting to ~ Rs. 289 crores from Mr. Adar
Poonawalla (through its Affiliates) for a 24.9% stake. The Poonawalla Group is based in Pune city in
Maharashtra and belonged to the Top 10 richest families in India. The Management of the Company
are pleased to welcome Mr. Adar Poonawalla as a shareholder (through its affiliates) of the Company
and are enthused by the confidence they have placed on the Company.

FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF INDAS

In accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards), Rules, 2015 of the Companies Act,
2013, read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“‘Act’), the Company has adopted the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) for preparation of its financial statements with effect from April 1,
2019, with comparative financials for the earlier period beginning April 1, 2018. The effective date
for Company’s Ind AS opening balance sheet is April 1, 2019.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review is annexed herewith as
Annexure IL

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, the following allotments were made on a preferential basis:

1. 355,000 partly paid up equity shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 296 per share, of
which Re. 1 per share towards part-payment of Face Value and Rs. 5 per share towards part-
payment of premium, were issued and allotted to the identified persons on preferential basis.

2. 54,39,705 equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 each on both fully and partly-paid up basis,

at a price of Rs. 531.69 per equity share including a premium of Rs. 521.69/- per equity share,
were issued and allotted to the identified persons belonging to Poonawalla Group, in the

following manner:
Sr. | Name of Allottee No. of fully No. of partly Percentage
No paid up equity | paid up equity
shares of the shares (face
face value of value of Rs. 10/-
Rs. 10/- each each, of which
Re. 1 paid up)
1 Rising Sun Holdings Private Limited 32,21,405 10,38,605 19.5%
2 Jeevadravya Bio-Pharma Private Limited | 11,79,695 - 5.4%
Total 4,401,100 1,038,605 24.90%

Rising Sun Holding Private Limited and Jeevadravya Bio-Pharma Private Limited executed an
Investment Agreement with the Company for subscribing to the above mentioned equity shares of the
Company.

Consequent to the allotments made as above, the paid-up equity share capital of the Company has
increased to Rs. 180,922,105 (Rupees Eighteen Crores Nine Lakhs Twenty Two Thousand One
Hundred and Five only), comprising of 17,675,100 fully paid equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/-
each and 4,171,105 partly paid equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/-, Re.l paid up as on March 31,
2020, from Rs. 13,55,17,500 (Rupees Thirteen Crores Fifty Five Lakhs Seventeen Thousand Fiv:

Ambit Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.
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Hundred only) comprising of 1,32,74,00 fully paid equity shares of Rs.10/- each and 27,77,500 partly
paid equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 each, Re 1 paid up as on March 31, 2019.

The present Authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 25, 00, 00,000 (Rupees Twenty Five
Crores only) consisting of 2, 50, 00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

BORROWINGS

During FY 2019-20, the Company met its funding requirements through debts from Financial
Institutions and Banks and issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures to the tune of Rs.42.65 crores.
The aggregate debt outstanding as on 31st March, 2020 was Rs. 427.52 crores. The Company has
been regular in servicing all its debt obligations.

During the year, the Company issued and allotted 4,265 Rated, Senior, Secured, Listed, Transferable,
Redeemable, Principal Protected, Market Linked Non-convertible Debentures having face value of
Rs. 100,000 each, aggregating to Rs. 42,65,00,000 on February 18, 2020 by way of private placement
and were listed on Bombay Stock exchange.

DIRECTORS AND KMP
e Change in Designation

During the period under review, Mr. Ameet Parikh (DIN: 00007036), Mr. KM Jayarao (DIN:
01077289) and Ms. Shalini Kamath (DIN: 06993314) were re-designated as Director (Non-Executive,
Independent) w.e.f August 16, 2019.

¢ Resignation

Mr. Sunil Gulati (DIN: 00016990) who was appointed as an Additional (Non-Executive) Director of
the Company w.e.f May 27, 2019 after the receipt of RBI’s approval resigned from the Board w.e.f
September 20, 2019.

During the period under review, Mr. Uday Thatte resigned as a Whole Time Company Secretary of
the Company w.e.f October 25, 2019.

The Board of Directors appointed Ms. Amrita Pillai as the Whole Time Company Secretary of
Company w.e.f. November 27, 2019.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

It is the opinion of the Board that the Independent Directors possess relevant expertise and
experience.

FIT AND PROPER CRITERIA

All the directors of the Company have completed the ‘fit and proper’ requirements stipulated as by the
Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”).

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.
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COMMITTEES

As at March 31, 2020, the Company has the following Committees

Sr. No. | Type of Committee

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Risk Management Committee

IT Strategy Committee

IT Steering Committee

Asset Liability Management Committee

Loan Sanction Committee

Allotment and Transfer Committee

fad = N Bl D ol Bl Pl ol [ d o

0. [ Operations Committee
1. | Operational Risk Management Committee

Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee and IT Strategy Committee are chaired by the Independent
Directors.

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS

During the year under review, 4 (four) Board Meetings were convened and held on May 16, 2019,
September 11, 2019, November 27, 2019 and March 2, 2020 respectively.

The attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings is as under:

Sr. No Name of Director No. of Board meetings
attended

1. Mr. Sanjay Sakhuja 4/4

2, Mr. Ameet Parikh 3/4

3x Mr. KM Jayarao 4/4

4. Ms. Shalini Kamath 4/4

5. Mr. Sanjay Agarwal 4/4

6. Mr. Sanjay Dhoka 4/4

7. Mr. Vikrant Narang 4/4

8. Mr. Sunil Gulati* 1/1

*Appointed w.e.f May 27, 2019 and Resigned w.e.f September 20, 2019.

During the year under review, 3 (three) Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held on May 16,
2019, September 11, 2019 and November 27, 2019 respectively.

The attendance of the Members at the Audit Committee Meetings are as under:

Sr. No Name of Member No. of meetings attended
1. | Mr. Sanjay Sakhuja 3/3
2. | Mr. Sunil Gulati* 1/1
3. Mr. Ameet Parikh 3/3
4. | Mr. KM Jayarao 3/3

*Appointed w.e.f May 27, 2019 and Resigned w.e.f September 20, 2019.

During the year under review, 2 (two) Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings were
convened and held on May 16, 2019 and March 4, 2020 respectively.

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.
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The attendance of the Members at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings are as under:

Sr. N¢ Name of Member No. of Meeting attended |
1. | Mr. Sanjay Sakhuja 2/2
2. | Ms. Shalini Kamath 2/2 N
3. | Mr. Ameet Parikh 172

During the year under review, 1 (one) CSR Committee Meeting was convened and held on September
11 2019.

Attendance of the Members at the CSR Committee Meeting:

Sr. No Name of Member No. of Meeting attended
1. Mr. Sanjay Sakhuja 171 |
2. Mr. Sanjay Dhoka 1/1
3. Mr. Vikrant Narang 1/1
4. Ms. Shalini Kamath 1/1

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained
by them your Directors state that:

a. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

b. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the
year;

c. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

€. the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable SS-1 (Secretarial
Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors) and SS-2 (Secretarial Standard on General Meetings)
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government
under Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

At the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on August 16, 2019, M/s S R Batliboi
and Co LLP (Firm Registration Number 301003E/E300005), Chartered Accountants were appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years to hold office from the conclusion
of the said AGM until the conclusion of the AGM of the Company for the financial year 2023-24.

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.
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M/s D.M. Zaveri & Co, has been appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the year
under review.

The Statutory Auditors’ Report on the financial statements and the Secretarial Audit report for the
financial year ended 31 March 2020 does not contain any qualification, reservation, or adverse remark
or disclaimer. Auditors Report and the notes on Financial statements referred to in the Auditor’s
Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. The Statutory Auditors have not
reported any incident of fraud to the Board during the financial year 2019-20.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 204 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Secretarial Audit Report as received
from M/s D.M. Zaveri & Co., is appended as Annexure IV to this Report.

There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the Secretarial
Auditors, in their Audit Report.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS w/s 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
No such case has been reported by the Auditors in their report.
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has its own process driven framework for internal financial controls. The Board is of
the opinion that the Company has sound internal financial controls commensurate with the nature and
size of its business operations; wherein controls are in place and operating effectively and no material
weaknesses exist.

The Company has appointed a reputed firm of Chartered Accountants to carry out internal audit on a
regular basis that includes monitoring and evaluation of the efficacy and adequacy of internal
financial controls, accounting procedures and policies and statutory compliances of the Company. The
reports of the internal auditors are presented to the Audit Committee/Board which oversees the
implementation of any corrective actions required.

CREDIT RATING

CARE Ratings reaffirmed their rating for the Long term and Short term debt programme of the
Company. The Company has been assigned the rating of A+(CE) for its Long Term bank facilities for
Rs 750 crores and A1+(CE) for its Commercial Paper issuance for Rs 100 crores.

CARE Rating has additionally assigned the rating of A+ (CE) to Principal Protected Market Linked
Debenture issuance for Rs. 100 crore by the Company. CE (Credit Enhancement) represents that the
borrowings are backed by the Corporate Guarantee of Ambit Private Limited, holding
company. CARE Rating has assigned an unsupported rating of A (Stable) to the Company.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company. During the year
under review, there was no company which has become a Subsidiary/ Joint Venture/ Associate
Company of the Company. The Company is a subsidiary of Ambit Private Limited which is into
various funds based and non-fund based activities through group entities.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Ambit Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.ao CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.
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The Company has adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy for Directors and Employees
which looks into the criteria for determining the remuneration for Directors and employees of the
Company.

The details of Remuneration in accordance with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is enclosed as Annexure VL

A copy of the Policy is published on the website of the Company.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on December 10, 2018 approved an Employee Stock
Option Scheme called as the ‘Ambit Finvest Employee Stock Option Scheme 2018’ (“Scheme™) and
the shareholders of the Company approved the said Scheme on December 31, 2018 at the Extra
Ordinary General Meeting.

The Scheme became effective from December 31, 2018.

The details of the Scheme are attached to this Report as Annexure V and also disclosed in the
accompanying financial statements,

DEPOSITS

The Company, being a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company, has not accepted nor
invited any deposits from the public during the year under review within the meaning of Section 73 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 and shall
not accept any deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval of the Reserve Bank of India.
Since the Company has not accepted nor invited any deposits, there are no amounts that remained
unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year under review.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has adopted its own Risk Management policy that represent the basic standards of risk
assessment to be followed by the Company. The Board is responsible for managing risk at an overall
level to do this. The Board has delegated authority for overall risk management to the Risk
Management Committee (RMC) to ensure focused oversight and committed board level capacity for
this task. The Risk Management Committee is chaired by the Independent Director with other
members of the Committee being Non-Executive.

The Company has also been following the group level risk management framework put in place by its
holding company for itself and its subsidiaries. Further, it has established procedures to periodically
place before its Investment and Risk Management Committee, the risk management and assessment
measures.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered into by the Company during the financial year under
review were on an arm’s length basis and in ordinary course of business. Pursuant to Section
134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, there are no related party
transactions that are required to be reported under Section 188(1) of the Act, as prescribed in Form
AOC-2.

The details of transactions with Related Parties as per the requirements of Listing Regulations are
provided in the Note 36 of the accompanying financial statements.

Ambit Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 india T+ 91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65998MH2006PTC163257.




—+— AMBIT

Acumen ot work
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with Rule 11(2) of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the loan made, guarantee given or
security provided in the ordinary course of business by an NBFC registered with Reserve Bank of
India are exempt from the applicability of provisions of Section 186 of the Act. As such, the
particulars of loans have not been disclosed in this Report. The details of the Investments of the
Company are given in the Notes to the accompanying Financial Statements.

DIVIDEND/RESERVES

Your Directors feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits for future growth of the Company and,
therefore, do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. As per the
requirement of the Reserve Bank of India Guidelines, the Company has transferred an amount of Rs.
31,924,040 to the Special Reserve.

COST RECORDS

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable on the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred from
the end of the financial year till the date of this report.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism to provide appropriate avenues to the Directors and
employees to bring to the attention of the Management, their genuine concerns and grievances about
the behavior of the employees. The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted a Whistle
Blower Policy which is in compliance with Section 177(10) of Companies Act, 2013.

The Ambit Group has established a vigilance mechanism for itself and its subsidiaries to provide
appropriate avenues to the employees and Directors to bring to the attention of the Management, their
genuine concerns and grievances. Our Prevention of Insider Trading policy of the Ambit Group also
has a “Informant Mechanism” formulated with an intention to curb the practice of insider trading and
initiate action against any insider trading activities and ensure integrity of the securities markets.

During the year under review, no cases under this mechanism were reported to the Company.
A copy of the Policy is published on the website of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(a) The Company is committed to a high standard of energy conservation and provision of a safe and
healthy work place. Adequate measures have been taken to reduce energy consumption by using
energy-efficient equipment, electrical systems and fittings.

(b) As the Company does not have any manufacturing activity or products, there are no particulars to
report on “Technology absorption’.

(c) There are no foreign exchange expenditure and earnings for the year under review.
Ambit Finvest Private Limited
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(d) The Company has not incurred any research and development expenditure during the year under
review.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Board has constituted CSR Committee in accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Committee is chaired by an Independent Director. The Company has framed CSR Policy
for itself.

The CSR activities of the Company are channelized through Ambit Oditi Foundation (Oditi) and/or
such other implementing agency. Oditi is the registered Charitable Trust. Ambit personnel, Ambit
group companies and other third parties contribute to the corpus of Oditi.

Ambit Oditi Foundation is a not-for-profit trust. It is committed towards creating life skill sets among
the rural and urban poor, i.e. people who are essentially school dropouts or who could not pursue
formal education. Ambit Oditi Foundation also helps assist support staff and their children and
families with education as well as medical expenses and training for their spouses, thereby positively
impacting their monthly household income.

The details of CSR activities undertaken by the Company are described in the prescribed format and
are appended as Annexure I to this Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS OF THE COMPANY

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
would impact the going concern status and the Company’s future operations.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as
Annexure I11.

As per the Companies Act, the extract of Annual Return will be placed on the website of the Company
(https://finvest.ambit.co/) post the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
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DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of the Internal Complaints
Committee formed under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013. The committee is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual
harassment.

During the financial year 2019-20, no cases/complaints in the nature of sexual harassment were
reported.
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ANNEXURE -1

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

S.No.

Particulars

Details about CSR

Brief outline of the Company’s
CSR policy, including overview of
projects or programs proposed to
be undertaken and a reference to
the web-link to the CSR policy and

The Company has framed a CSR Policy for itself in compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

During the year under review, the Company’s CSR activities were

routed through Ambit Oditi Foundation, the registered Charitable
Trust

projects or programs

The CSR Policy is available on the following web link:

bttps://finvest.ambit.co/

During the year under review, your Company undertook CSR
activities in the area of Nutrition and Education.

Ms. Shalini Kamath
Mr. Sanjay Dhoka

Mr. Sanjay Sakhuja
Mr. Vikrant Narang

2. Composition of the CSR
Committee

3. Average net profit of the company | Rs. 196,598,187

for last three financial years

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two
per cent of the amount as in item 3
above)

Rs. 3,931,964

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year
(1) Total amount to be spent for the F.Y Rs. 3,932,000

(2) Amount unspent, if any Nil

(3) The manner in which the amount spent The manner in which the
during the financial year spent is detailed below
6] )] (3) ) &) (6) ) (8)
S. CSR project | Sector in | Projects or | Amount Amount Amount spent:
No. or activity which programs outlay spent on Cumulative Direct or
identified the (1) Local (budget) | the projects | expenditure through
Project is area or project or upto to the | implementing
covered other (2) or programs reporting agency”
Specify the | programs Sub- period.
State and wise heads:(1)
district Direct
where expenditure
projects or on projects
programs or
was programs.
undertaken 2)
Overheads:

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
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1 Nutrition Nutrition | Palghar, Through
Maharashtra | 900,000 900,000 900,000 Implementing

agency

2 | Medical Aid | Medical Mumbai, Through
Aid Mabharashtra | 500,000 500,000 500,000 Implementing

agency

3 | Education Education | New Delhi Through
2,000,000 | 2,000,000 2,000,000 Implementing

agency

4 | Education Education | Mumbai, Through
Mabharashtra | 532,000 532,000 532,000 Implementing

agency

3,932,000 | 3,932,000 3,932,000

~Ambit Oditi Foundation

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Responsibility Statement of the CSR Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company is reproduced

below:

The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of

the Company.

fl e

Shalini Kamath
Director & Member - CSR Committee
DIN: 06993314
Date: June 24, 202

Sanjay Sakhuja
Whole Time Director & Member - CSR Committee

DIN: 00004370
Date: June 24, 2020

Whole Time Director & Member = CSR Committee
DIN: 07842547
Date: June 24, 2020

\ .
2onpoy w9
Sanjay Dhoka
Whole Time Director & Member — CSR Committee

DIN: 00450023
Date: June 24, 2020

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF

AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

=0

Sanjay Sakhuja
Whole Time Director and Executive Chairman
DIN: 00004370

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2020
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Sanjay Dhoka
Whole Time Director and COO & CFO

DIN: 00450023
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ANNEXURE II

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
Industry Structure and Developments
1. Macro economic developments:

The Indian economy was slowing down even before the Pandemic (in March 2020) struck, with
the YoY GDP growth dwindling quarter on quarter from 5.2% in Q1 FY20 to 4.4% in Q2 FY20
and 4.1% in Q3 FY20 (Revised growth estimates by Govt.). Pandemic induced disruption in the
supply chain and nationwide lockdown caused the GDP growth to fall further to 3.1% in Q4
FY20, thereby dragging the overall GDP growth rate to 4.2% for FY20 (vs 6.1% in FY19) — the
weakest performance since global financial crisis. The global factors like contraction in global
trade / demand leading to a sharp contraction in exports and domestic factors like fall in private
consumption (Private Final Consumption Expenditure slowed to 5.3% in FY20 vs 7.2% in FY19)
and investment (Gross Fixed Capital Formation contracted by 2.8% in FY20) underlie the decline
in GDP growth rate.

The fall in consumption had underpinned severe credit contraction and a fall in rural demand
(caused by low wage inflation and rising unemployment rate) while the contraction in investment
was largely caused by fall in manufacturing and construction activities driven by weak business
sentiments and falling demand. The severe credit contraction due to a) liquidity crisis in NBFC
sector (triggered by default on loans by a prominent NBFC player in Sep 2018) and b) Banks
grappling with asset quality issues sits at the heart of the issue of slowing GDP growth. Although
the government has attempted a host of long-term reform measures, including corporate tax
reduction and support for farmers’ income, it has not brought much respite to the dwindling GDP
growth rate in the short-term.,

The Rupee though depreciated by 1.4% in FY20, remained largely resilient compared to its peers,
as indicated by the Real Effective Exchange Rate (REER- Measures Indian currency against a
basket of 36 other currencies) appreciated by 2.8% in FY20.

The onset of pandemic in March 2020 dealt a heavy blow to the already slowing Indian Economy.
The pandemic and the associated measures (Lock-down, Travel curb etc.) have caused severe
supply shocks in the form of supply chain disruption, a significant curb in production and tourism
and demand shocks triggered by loss of income/employment, lower discretionary spends and
deterioration of sentiments. Further mass migration of labour, as a result of the pandemic is also
expected to create massive shortage of labour for the manufacturing and construction industry as
the economy starts to recover from the lock-down situation.

The RBI responded to the pandemic induced crisis through monetary support like cutting policy
rates, allowing moratorium on loans and liquidity injection measures like introducing TLTRO
(Targeted Long Term Repo Operations) and extending refinancing facilities to nodal agencies like
NABARD, SIDBI and NHB. The Government also has extended fiscal support through slew of
relief packages targeted towards social welfare and MSMEs and economic stimulus package for
various industries.

Low inflation supported by low Crude oil price and the expected good monsoon is likely to
provide some respite from the challenging economic environment. Further India is likely to be
one of the beneficiaries of the global drive to reduce supply dependency on China.

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
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India’s strong fundamentals, prudent macroeconomic policy framework continues to focus on
reforms and a massive domestic market make it one of the few most resilient economies in the
world.

2. Key developments in Credit Market and NBFC sector:

The credit market witnessed severe liquidity contraction in FY20. The tightening of the credit
flow triggered by the default of the prominent NBFC in Sep 2018, coupled with weak business
environment worsened the liquidity position of many large corporate firms leading to multiple
defaults across a range of prominent names in various industries. This led to banks further turning
cautious thereby leading to tightening of credit flow.

The overall credit growth slowed down significantly to 6.6% in FY20 from 12.6% in FY19. De-
growth was witnessed across Banks, NBFCs and corporate bonds. The weak economic
environment coupled with higher risk aversion from Banks is likely to further slowdown the
credit off-take this year.

With the credit market expected to further tighten, support from banks will be crucial. The well
capitalized NBFCs with low leverage and significant growth capital at disposal, like your
Company, will be in a better position to tackle the pandemic induced economic crisis and are
expected to gain market share over weak players. Further, the hosts of measures announced by the
RBI and Government for MSMEs as are likely to lessen the blow of the crisis in the MSME
lending space.

State of Company Affairs:
1. Overview:

Ambit Finvest Pvt. 1td. (AFPL) is a systemically important, non-deposit accepting NBFC
registered with RBI, operating in Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) lending and Structured
Finance (SF) space.

Our overall loan book as on FYE20 stood at around Rs. 815 crores (Around Rs.767 crore as on
FYE19) with SME book at around Rs. 509 crores (Rs. 351 crores as on FYE19) and SF book at
around Rs. 306 crores (Rs. 416 crore as on FYE19). On account of liquidity related headwinds in
wholesale lending space, the management took a conscious decision to de-grow the SF book. On
the other hand, the acquisition of SME business last year proved to be extremely fruitful. It not
only added granularity to our portfolio, but it also helped us tap the credit market better which
lead to meaningful growth in our SME book. The SME business added 1,556 new customers
during FY20, thereby increasing the customer base from 1,903 as on FYE19 to 3,459 as on
FYE20. Along with strong growth, our asset quality remained robust in an extremely challenging
business environment, as evinced by the Net NPA figure which stood at 0.98%. The product mix
for our SME business currently stands as follows:

Secured Business Loan 72%

Unsecured Business Loan 28%

On the liability side, diversification of sources of funds was a key theme across the NBFC space.
In pursuit of the same, we have not only managed to diversify our banking relationships but also
been able to tap the capital markets successfully by embarking upon our debut issuance of Market
Linked Debentures (MLDs) which has witnessed a splendid response from the market. The MLD
which was launched for Rs. 25 crores with an additional green shoe option which was over-
subscribed and led us to raise funds to the tune of Rs. 42.65 crores. The remarkable success of o
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debut MLD issuance speaks volumes of the confidence placed by the investors in our business
model, management team and strong corporate governance.

We welcome Mr. Adar Poonawalla, one of the most reputed families of India as a large
shareholder in our Company with a 24.9% stake (through his family office) by investing Rs. 289.2
crores. This investment was made in March 2020,

AFPL’s Long Term and Short Term debt programme are rated by CARE Ratings as A+/Al+ (CE)
(Reaffirmed with a stable outlook). CE (Credit Enhancement) represents that the borrowings are
backed by the Corporate Guarantee of Ambit Private Limited (Holding Company). CARE Rating
has assigned an unsupported rating of A (Stable) to the Company.

Equipped with a strong balance sheet and substantial growth capital, our Company is better
positioned to wither the challenging economic environment and take meaningful strides in our
growth journey.

2. Financial Performance- Key Highlights:

2.1 Loan Book:
The overall loan book grew by 6.3% from Rs. 767 crores as on FYE19 to Rs. 815 crores as on

FYE20. The following table summarizes the movement of loan book across Structured Finance
(SF) and Small and Medium Enterprises (SME) segment.

SME 351 509 44.1%
SF 416 306 -26.2%
Total 767 815 6.3%

2.2 Asset Quality:

The quality of our assets remained fairly robust in an extremely challenging economic
environment. Our Gross NPA increased from 0.59% as on FYE19 to 1.59% as on FYE20 whereas
our net NPA increased from 0.25% as on FYE19 to 0.98% as on FYE20.

2.3 Revenue and Profitability:
The revenue grew by 49.86% from Rs. 86.60 crores in FY19 to Rs.129.78 crores in FY20.
However, the PAT reduced from Rs. 19.73 crores to Rs. 15.96 crores, which is attributable to

subdued performance in last quarter, expansion of branches and higher provisioning on account of
transition to IND AS and COVID-19 impact.

2.4 Liquidity and Gearing profile:
The Company has remained well capitalized due to periodic infusion of capital. With the fresh

round of equity infusion, the overall gearing of the Company stood at 0.69x as on FYE20, as
against 1.07x as on FYE19.

Similarly, the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stood at 68.8% as on FYE20 vis-a-vis 46.5% as on
FYE19. The cash and cash equivalent / liquid investments as on 31* March 2020 stood at Rs
229.4 crores vis-a-vis that of Rs. 22.7 crores as on 31* March 2019 . A strong liquidity and
gearing profile puts us on a strong footing as compared to many of our peers.

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
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3.  SWOT Analysis:

Strengths:
e Strong Governance — Board of Directors comprising eminent professionals across broad

array of disciplines

e Strong Management team with superior understanding of mid-market segment and a
strong network

e Strong internal controls systems and processes

e Backed by strong promoters and investors

e Quick response time along with strong risk mitigation framework

o Ability to leverage on the capabilities/expertise of various business units of Ambit Group

Weaknesses: ,
e Concentration risk due to Structured Finance portfolio (although backed by strong asset

quality parameters and currently on de-growth mode to improve granularity of the overall
loan book)

e Low seasoning of the SME portfolio (although backed by strong asset quality parameters)

Opportunities:
» Well capitalized balance sheet with substantial growth capital
e Strong gearing profile, good asset quality parameters, and a strong credit rating —
favourably positioned to tap credit markets
e Favourable Government policies directed towards MSME sector — favourable lending
ecosystem

Threats:
e Severe credit contraction on account of deteriorating economic environment

e Uncertainty associated with the depth of the Pandemic led economic crisis which may
impact credit quality

4. Operations:

Our SME business significantly expanded its geographic foot prints by doubling its branches. In
FY20 increased our branch count to 20 and established presence in geographies like Pune,
Ludhiana, Rajkot, Bayad, Kalyan, Kheda, Borsad, Vijayawada, Gandhidham, Udaipur and
Hyderabad. Accordingly our employee strength increased from 206 as on FYE19 to 265 as on
FYE20.

5. Digital Initiatives:

Last year, we undertook a number of projects aimed at improving our operational efficiency and
productivity as part of our digital transformation journey.

The largest project undertaken was migration from conventional Loan Origination System (LOS)
to a new age LOS with automated data capture, connectivity with central databases for instant
verification of critical data and rule engine / scorecard based decision making. We are happy to
announce that the project has been completed and is likely to go live soon after completion of
User Acceptance Test. It would not only make our underwriting process entirely paperless and
digital for a part of unsecured business, thereby minimizing human intervention, but would also
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significantly improve our response time. In addition, instant verification of critical data points
would make our underwriting process significantly more robust.

Other key digital initiatives accomplished in FY20 include:

e Deployment of geo-tagging feature with auto-MIS for efficient management of sales
team.

e Implementation of collection module providing real time Borrower information and
system generated MIS for increasing collection efficiency.

¢ Business Intelligence assisted MIS system - providing better access to intelligent
information

e System generated reports for regulatory reporting

e Paperless execution of Loan Agreement and automated CKYC upload in central registry
— better operational efficiency

This year our key focus area will be the implementation of CRM (Customer Relationship
Management) module and integrating it with our client on-boarding channels, Loan Origination
System and Loan Management System. Apart from this, the other digital initiative will be aimed
at further strengthening our credit underwriting and collection system and improving our
operational efficiency.

6. Roadmap for the current Financial Year:

While we brace for a challenging economic environment, we would adopt a cautious approach
towards lending. However, our strong balance sheet and liquidity profile puts us in an
advantageous position as compared to many of our peers, enabling us to take meaningful strides
in our growth journey.

Going forward, we will continue to focus on the growth of the SME business by both organic and
inorganic means. Although we would majorly focus on capitalizing on the Government support
for the MSME businesses (For e.g. extending credit under the Emergency Credit Line Guarantee
Scheme, which is fully guaranteed by Govt.), and we will also expand our footprint into the
Vehicle Finance and Equipment Finance segment with the target of scaling up the segment in the
overall portfolio mix by the end of this financial year.

Another focus area this year will be forging tie-ups with other NBFCs and Fintech firms for joint
underwriting of new businesses under co-lending and Banking Correspondence (BC)
arrangement.

On the Digital initiatives front, we will continue our digital transformation journey as a strong
focus area as detailed in the earlier section.

Key risks and controls:

The Company is engaged in lending business and is exposed to the following key risks

1. Credit Risk:

This risk is associated with the recovery of capital from counterparty. The Company has a robust
credit risk framework in place which includes sectoral guardrails, strong policy and compliance
framework, a comprehensive due-diligence and risk assessment process, prudent approval
process, robust monitoring process and strong governance to mitigate the risk.

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
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2. Market Risk:

This risk is associated with adverse market movements. The Company has a robust monitoring
process to track key market parameters to contain interest rate risk, concentration risk and risk
associated with asset liability mismatch through internal risk models, which is reviewed by the
relevant committee from time to time to take appropriate actions.

3. Operational Risk:

This risk is associated with inadequate processes and internal controls. The Company has robust
processes and a strong compliance framework in place to mitigate the risk. Our audit and
compliance team periodically monitor the adequacy of processes, ensure adherence to the same
and strengthen the internal controls.

4. Liquidity Risk:

The Company has adopted a cautious approach towards liquidity management. We maintain
adequate liquidity to meet any unforeseen event. In addition, we adhere to strict internal
guidelines to appropriately manage Asset Liability Mismatch (ALM) and remain compliant with
the regulatory requirements.

Adequacy of internal financial controls

The Company has its own process driven framework for internal financial controls. The Board is of
the opinion that the Company has sound internal financial controls commensurate with the nature and
size of its business operations; wherein controls are in place and operating effectively and no material
weaknesses exist. The Company has appointed a reputed firm of Chartered Accountants to carry out
internal audit on a regular basis that includes monitoring and evaluation of the efficacy and adequacy
of internal financial controls, accounting procedures and policies and statutory compliances of the
Company. The reports of the internal auditors are presented to the Audit Committee/Board which
oversees the implementation of any corrective actions required.

Human Resources

The Company has built a culture that is the key enabler for progress of our people and enrich their
experience of working with us. We have a well-defined HR Structure and processes that focus on the
following three aspects:

e Talent Management:

On boarding top talent and building a pipeline of potential candidates for key roles is done effectively
from time to time. There is continuous engagement with business team and braches to understand
current and future talent requirements and challenges. In the last financial year our employee strength
increased from 206 to 265. In addition to this, in order to encourage partnership approach we have
allotted ESOPs and partly paid up shares to the key senior employees of the organization.

e Goal Setting and KPI:

We have a robust goal setting process aimed at aligning Individual, Team and Business goals. Mid-
year conversations with a feed-forward approach are conducted and course corrections are
implemented wherever required. FY 20 was the first year of KPI based evaluation

¢ (Capability Building:
Ambit Private Limited
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Learning interventions focused at specific business needs have been developed and
institutionalized for key roles.

o Employee Engagement:

Focus on getting the young workforce together to create a friendly and collaborative workforce
through initiatives like cricket, poker and other sports tournaments.

The Company’s holding company engaged Willis Towers Watson to run an engagement survey across
the group. A sustained high engagement score confirmed that the rigor in our people practices in the
last few years was indeed leading us to the desired direction.

Disruption caused by Covid-19 situation was multifold. Formation of Ambit Group Employee Health
and Safety Council (EHS) in December 2019 and further investment in their training was instrumental
in timely response in terms of framing dynamic rules and guidelines for employee safety and business
continuity. EHS’s preparedness ensured that the employees seamlessly transitioned to work from
home and appreciated the proactive approach towards employee safety.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

Sanjay Sakhuja Sanjay Dhoka
Whole Time Director and Executive Chairman Whole Time Director and COO & CFO
DIN: 00004370 DIN: 00450023

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2020
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ANNEXURE - III
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the Financial Year ended 31.03.2020
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
FORM NO. MGT -9

I. Registration and other details

CIN U65999MH2006PTC163257
Registration Date 24.07.2006
Name of the Company \Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company having Share Capital

Address of the Registered Office and contact |Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,

details Mumbai 400013

Whether listed company Debt Listed — Bombay Stock Exchange

Name, address and contact details of Link Intime India Private Limited

Registrar and Transfer Agent , if any 247 Park, C 101, 1* floor, LBS Marg, Vikhroli (W),
Mumbai 400083.

II. All the Business Activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company

shall be stated:
Name and Description of main Products / NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of
Services Product / Service | the Company
Other financial service activities, except insurance 64990 96.76%
and pension funding activities, n.e.c. (Lending)

III. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies:

Name and address CIN /GLN Holding / % of Applicable
of the Company Subsidiary / shares Section
Associate held
Ambit Private [U65923MH1997PTC109992 Holding 56.53 2(46)
Limited Company
Ambit House, 449,
Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel,

Mumbeai - 400013

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819
wwwambit.co CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity share capital breakup as % of total Equity)

i) Category-wise Shareholding:

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the | No. of Shares held at the end of the year %

year

Change

During
the

Year

A. Promoters

Demat

Physical

Total

% of | Demat Physical Total % of
total total
shares shares

(1) Indian

Individuals/
HUF

Central Govt

State Govt(s)

Bodies Corp

12,259,000

12,259,000

76.37 12,259,000 | 12,259,000 | 56.53 | 19.84

90,000% 90,000%

Banks/ FI

Any Other*

SubTotal
(A1)

12,259,000

12,259,000

76.37 12,349,000 | 12,349,000 | 56.53 | 19.84

(2) Foreign

NRIs-
Individuals

Other —
Individuals

Bodies Corp

Banks/ FI

Any Other

SubTotal
(A)(2)

Total
shareholding
of Promoter
(A)=(AN1)HA)

12,259,000

12,259,000

76.37 12,349,000 | 12,349,000 | 56.53 | 19.84

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

Mutual Funds

Banks/ FI

Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,

www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.

/"" ‘e Lj
(s

Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819 (/4 &
U
) *;
%

Y ,?_lq\).l'4



Central Govt
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State Govt(s)

Venture
Capital Funds

Insurance
Companies

Flls

Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

Others (specify)

SubTotal
(B)(1)

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corp.

655,000

655.000

4.08

5.056,100

1,038,605"

6,094,705

27.90

23.82

b) Individuals

1) Individual

Shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital upto Rs.
1 lakh

240,000

240,000

1.50

200,000

200,000"

0.92

0.58

ii)) Individual

Shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
cxcess of Rs 1
lakh

360,000
2,537,500

360,000
2,537,500

18.05

360,000
2,842,500"

360,000
2,842,500"

14.66

339

c)  Others
(Specify)

1) NRI (Non-
Rep)

i) NRI (Rep)

ii) Trust

Sub
Total(B)(2)

3,792,500

3,792,500

23.63

6,094,705

3,402,500

9,497,205

43.47

19.84

Total Public
Shareholding

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)

3,792,500

3,792,500

23.63

6,094,705

3,402,500

9,497,205

43.47

19.84

C. Shares
held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+91 22 3982 1819

www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.
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Grand Total | |16,051,500 16,051,500 | 100 6,094,705 | 15,751,500 | 21,846,205 | 100 l I
| (A+B+C)

#partly paid up equity shares

ii) Shareholding pattern of Promoters:

Shareholder’s Shareholding at the Shareholding at the end of the year % Change in
Name beginning of the year shareholding
No. of % of % of Shares No. of % of %of Shares during the
Shares total Pledged / Shares total Pledged/ Year
Shares of | encumbered Shares of | encumbered
the to total the to total
company shares company shares
Ambit  Private | 12,259,000 76.37 - 12,349,000 56.53 - 19.84
Limited (along
with its
Nominee)

#includes partly paid up equity shares

iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change):

Sl Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during
Noe. the year the year
No. of % of total Shares of No. of % of total Shares of
Shares the company Shares the company
1 Ambit Private Limited
At the beginning of the year 12,259,000 76.37 12,259,000 | 76.37
(01-04-19)
Add:
(a) Transfer from Employees and 70,000%
others on June 28, 2019
(b) Issue of shares on preferential
allotment basis on 19.09.2019 50,000"
(c) Transfer from Employees and
others on Sept 23, 2019
47,500"
(d) Transfer from Employees and
others on February 22, 2020 65,000*
Less:
(a) Transfer to Employees and
others on February 22, 2020
(142,500
At the end of the year (31-03-20) 12,349,000 | 56.53

fipartly paid up equity shares

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.oo CIN: U65999MH2 006PTC163257.
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iv)Shareholding Pattern of top tem Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SL For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
No. beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of the Shares Shares of the
company company

1. Rising Sun Holdings Private Limited

At the beginning of the year - -
Add: allotted on 05.03.2020 - - 4,260,010
At the end of the year 4,260,010 | 19.50

2. Jeevadravya Bio-Pharma Private Limited

At the beginning of the year - - = -

Add: allotted on 05.03.2020 - - 1,179,695

At the end of the year - - 1,179,695 | 5.40
3. Nine International Securities Private Limited

At the beginning of the year 655,000 | 4.08 655,000 4.08

Less: transfer to RW Media Private Limited on - - (235,000) 1.08

January 31, 2020

At the end of the year - - 420,000 1.92

4. RW Media Private Limited

At the beginning of the year - B N N

Add: transfer from Nine International Securities 235,000
Private Limited on January 31, 2020
At the end of the year - 235,000 1.08

5. Mr. Sunil Gulati

At the beginning of the year 50,000 0.31

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year - 50,000 0.23

6. Mr. Siddhartha Rastogi

At the beginning of the vear 50,000 0.31

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

At the end of the year - - 50,000 0.23

7. Mr. Nitin Bhasin

At the beginning of the year 50,000 0.31

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T-+91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.oo CIN: U65999MH2006PTC 163257,
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| At the end of the year ll- | 50000 | o0.23
8. Mr. Vikas Khattar
At the beginning of the year 50,000 0.31 - -
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters - - - -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year - - 50,000 0.23
9. Mr. Dhiraj Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 50,000 0.31
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year - 50,000 0.23
10. Mr. Gautam Gupte
At the beginning of the year 50,000 0.31
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year - 50,000 0.23
v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
SL Name of Directors and KMP | Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Cumulative Shareholding
No. during the vear
No. of Shares % of total Shares of | No. of Shares % of total
the company Shares of the
company
1. Mr. Sanjav Sakhuja 600,000 3.74 600,000 2.75
2. Mr. Sanjay Agarwal 360,000A 224 360,000A 3.48
400,000 2.49 400,000
3. Mr. Vikrant Narang 350,000 2.18 350,000 1.60
4. Mr. Sanjay Dhoka 175,000 1.09 175,000 0.80
5. Mr. KM Jayarao 50,000 0.31 50.000 0.23
6 Ms. Shalini Kamath - - 50,000 0.23

~ncludes partly paid up equity shares

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment:
Particulars Secured Loans excluding Deposits | Unsecured Loans | Deposits | Total

[Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
1. Principal Amount 400,48,56,415 - - 400,48,56,415
2. Interest due but not paid - - - -
3. Interest accrued but not due | 61,37,108 53,260 - 61,90,368
Total (1+2+3) 401,09,93,523 53,260 - 401,10,46,783
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819

www.ambit.co CIN: U65998MH2006PTC163257.
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Addition 247,65,00,000 50,00,00,000 - 297,65,00,000
Reduction (2,712,026,009) 0 - (2,712,026,009)
Net Change (235,526,009) 50,00,00,000 - 26,44,73,991
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

1. Principal Amount 374,87,47,858 50,00,00,000 - 424,87,47,858
2, Interest due but not paid - - - -

3. Interest accrued but not due | 88,59,367 1,76,16,438 - 2,64,75,805
Total (1+2+3) 375,76,07,225 51,76,16,438 - 427,52,23,663

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

A, Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SL No. | Particulars of | Name of MD/WTD/ Name of MD/WTD/ Name of MD/WTD/ Name of Total
Remuneration | Manager Manager Manager MD/WTD/
Manager
Sanjay Dhoka Sanjay Sakhuja Vikrant Narang Sanjay
Agarwal
Executive
Officer

1 Gross Salary

a. Salary as per | 9,029,405 9,679,576 12,163,104 11,908,609 | 42,708,65
provisions -
contained in
section 17(1)
of the Income-
tax Act, 1961

b. Value of 10,800 - - 7,596 19,396
perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-
tax Act, 1961
c. Profits in - - - - -
lieu of salary
under section
17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option - - N - -
Sweat Equity - - N - -

4 Commission - - -

- as % of - - -
profit
others specify - - -

5 Others, please - 5 -
specify

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.ao CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.
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SL.

No.

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total
Amount

Mr. Ameet
Parikh

Independent Directors

Mr. KM
Jayarao

Ms. Shalini
Kamath

Mr. Sunil
Gulati

a. Fee for attending board
/ committee meetings
325,000

350,000

325,000

1,000,000

b. Commission -

c.  Others, please specify -

Total (1) 325,000

350,000

325,000

Other Non-Executive
Directors

a. Fee for attending board -
/ committee meetings

75,0007

75,000

b. Commission -

c.  Others, please specify -
(Bonus)

956,989

956,989

Total-(2)

1,031,989

Total-B (1+2)

Total Managerial

Remuneration 325,000

350,000

325,000

1,031,989

2,031,989

Overall Ceiling as per the
Act

@ Appointed on May 27, 2019 and resigned on September 20, 2019

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/ Manager/ WID.

SL

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Total
Amount

Ms. Amrita Pillai
(Company Secretary)*

Gross salary

a.  Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

201,846

201,846

b. Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961

¢.  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income-tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit

- Others, specify...

Others, please specify- (Bonus)

*Appointed w.e.f November 27, 2019

Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Acumen at work

Type Section of Brief Details of Penalty Authority Appeal
the Companies Description / [RD/NCLT made,
Act Punishment/ / COURT] if any
Compounding (give
fees imposed Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty - - -
Punishment - - _
Compounding - - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - . -
Punishment - - -
Compounding - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

F—1

Sanjay Sakhuja

Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director

DIN: 00004370

Place: Mumbai

Date: June 24,2020

Ambit Finvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.

Qouyouy AL

Sanjay Dhoka

Whole Time Director and COO & CFO

DIN: 00450023




D. M. ZAVER] & Co.

Company Secretaries
(S Dharmesh M. Zaveri
B Com., F.C.S.

145, 1st Floor, Kesar Residency, Above Bagwati Restaurant, Sector 3, Charkop, Kandivali (West), Mumbai — 400 067.
Tel.: 022-28679660, 022-49712722 (M). 98203 20503, E-mail.: dmz@dmzaveri.com, Website: www.dmzaveri.com

Secretarial Audit Report
Form No. MR-3
For the Financial year ended 31st March, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Ambit Finvest Private Limited

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Ambit Finvest Private Limited (hereinafter called ‘the
Company’). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Ambit Finvest Private Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, |
hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained

by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

()  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(To the extent applicable)

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and the Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings (To the extent applicable);
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Company Secretaries

(S Dharmesh M. Zaveri
B Com., F.C.S.

145, 1st Floor, Kesar Residency, Above Bagwati Restaurant, Sector 3, Charkop, Kandivali (West), Mumbai — 400 067.
Tel.: 022-28679660, 022-49712722 (M). 98203 20503, E-mail.: dmz@dmzaveri.com, Website: www.dmzaveri.com

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992(‘The SEBI') :-

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; (Not relevant / applicable to the Company)

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(to the extent applicable to the Company)

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; (Not relevant / applicable to the Company)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014; (Not relevant / applicable to the Company)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (to the extent
applicable to the Company)

(9) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
(Not relevant / applicable to the Company)

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998. (Not
relevant / applicable to the Company)

() The Securites and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. (to the extent applicable to the Company)

(vi)  The following laws are specifically applicable to the Company in addition to laws mentioned above

() Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to the extent applicability of Master Direction - Non-Banking
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses to the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(i) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited in respect of its Debt
Securities in accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations 2015.
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During the period under review the Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Act,

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of
Executive, Non — Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the

provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meeting, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance or in compliance with the Act, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting

and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings carried out unanimously as recorded in the
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,

regulations and guidelines.
| further report that, during the period under review, the company has

1. Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the 13t Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 16™ August 2019, consent of the members of the company was obtained for the following;

a) Issue and allot upto 3,95,000 equity shares of the Company having a face value of ¥10/- each at
a price of I306/- (including a premium of ¥296/-), on a partly paid basis of which 355,000 equity
shares having face value of ¥10/- each at a price of ¥306/- (including a premium of ¥296/-) of
which 6/- per share partly paid on application (31/- towards face value and I5/- towards
premium), was allotted by allotment and transfer committee on 19t September 2019;

2. Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company
held on 7t January 2020, consent of the members of the company was obtained for issue of Rated,
Senior, Secured, Listed, Transferable, Redeemable, Principal Protected Market Linked Non-
Convertible Debentures upto aggregate amount of INR 200 crores on a private placement basis and
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of which 4,265 Debentures having face value of %1,00,000/- each amounting to I42,65,00,000/- was

allotted by operations committee on February 18, 2020 and the said debentures was listed with BSE

Limited on 6t March 2020;

3. Pursuant to the special resolution passed at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company
held on 3 March 2020, consent of the members of the company was obtained for the following:

b) Issue and allot upto 44,01,100 equity shares of the Company having a face value of ¥10/- each
at a price of 531.69 (including a premium of ¥521.69) on fully paid up basis and the same was
allotted by allotment and transfer committee on 5t March 2020;

c) Issue and allot upto 10,38,605 equity shares of the Company having a face value of 10/- each
at a price of 531.69 (including a premium of Rs. 521.69), on a partly paid basis and the same
allotted by allotment and transfer committee on 5 March 2020 of which 6/- per share partly

paid on application (Z1/- towards face value and Z5/- towards premium);

For D. M. Zaveri & Co
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Dharmesh Zaveri
(Proprietor)

FCS No.: 5418
CP No.: 4363

ICSI Unique Code: S2001MH046100
Peer Review Cer. No.: 294/2015

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24th June 2020

ICSI UDIN: F005418B000374710



ANNEXURE V

DISCLOSURES ON EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,

2020

Name of scheme: Ambit Finvest Employee Stock Option Scheme 2018

— AMBIT
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Nature of Disclosures Particulars

Options Granted 155,000

Options vested Nil

Options exercised Nil

The total no of shares arising as a result of exercise of option | Not applicable

Options lapsed 20,000

Exercise price Rs.306

Variation of terms of Option NA

Money realized by exercise of Options Not applicable

Total no of Options in force 135,000

Employee wise details of options granted:

KMP Nil

any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one FY 2019-20:

year of options amounting to five percent or more of total : -

options granted during that year Name of employee Options granted
Sanjay Trivedi* 10,000
Sameer Shimaria 25,000
Balachendil P. 10,000
Deepak Shah 10,000
Manoj Singh 10,000
Shiv Shankar Chatterjee 10,000
Hemant Patel 10,000
*lapsed during FY 1920
FY 2018-19:
Vikram Manwani 10,000
Sharad Garg 15,000
Saurabh Paul 15,000
Sanjay Trivedi* 10,000
Saurabh Arora 5,000
Balachendil P. 5,000
Deepak Shah 10,000
*lapsed during FY 1920

identified employees who were granted options, during any
one year, equal to or exceeding one percent of the issned
capital, excluding outstanding warrants and conversions, of
the company at the time of grant

Not applicable

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

o

Sanjay Sakhuja
Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director
DIN: 00004370

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24,2020

Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Qonfouf Y
Sanjay Dhoka

Whole Time Director and COO & CFO
DIN: 00450023

Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819

www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.
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Disclosure in terms of Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:°

Sr. | Particulars Remarks
No.
1. | The ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of e  Sanjay Sakhuja —20.61
the employees of the Company for the financial year e  Sanjay Dhoka—19.25
e  Sanjay Agarwal — 25.38
e  Vikrant Narang —25.90
2. | Percentage increase/decrease in remuneration of each director, Chief e  Sanjay Sakhuja - (59.09)%
Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or e  Sanjay Dhoka— (15.52)%
Manager, if any, in the financial year; e  Sanjay Agarwal — (0.90%)
e  Vikrant Narang — (3.16)%
e  Amrita Pillai — NA (since joined
in March 2019)
3. | Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the e 371%
financial year
4. | The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company 265
5. | Median Remuneration of employees of the Company 469,600
6. | Percentage Increase in the median remuneration of employees during the 3.71%
financial year
7. | Average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than the | Average Percentage increase in
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the | salaries of:
percentage increase in the managerial remuneration and justification | ¢  Employees other than the
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase managerial personnel — 6.64%
in the managerial remuneration
e  Managerial personnel —
(19.67%
8. | Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the It is hereby affirmed that the
company remuneration paid is as per the
Remuneration Policy for Directors and
Employees adopted by the Company
9. | Names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the 1.  Sanjay Agarwal

name of every employee, who-

¢ if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of
remuneration for that year which, in the aggregate, was not less
than one crore and two lakh rupees;

e if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of
remuneration for any part of that year, at a rate which, in the
aggregate, was not less than eight lakh and fifty thousand rupees

per month

e if employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in
receipt of remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as
the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of
that drawn by the managing director or whole-time director or
manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and
dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares
of the company

2. Vikrant Narang

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

e

Sanjay Sakhuja
Executive Chairman and Whole Time Director
DIN: 00004370

Sanjay Dhoka

DIN: 00450023

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2020

Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,

www.ambit.oo CIN: U65999MH2006PTC163257.

Ronfon] WY

Whole Time Director and COO & CFO

Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+91 22 3982 1819
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SR Barusoi & Co. LLP el

Chartered Accountants Mumbai - 400 028, India
Tel: +91 22 6819 8000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Ambit Finvest Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 50 these standalone Ind AS financial statements, which describes the current
and anticipated impact of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic on the Company's business,
results of operations, and financial position as a consequence of the Company’s estimates of impairment
of loans to customers, and that such estimates are highly dependent on uncertain future developments.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
standalone-Ind-AS-financial statements—section—of -our report,-including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016
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Key audit matters

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Impairment of financial assets (expected credit losses)
(as described in Note 6 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for
impairment of its loans (designated at amortised
cost) using the expected credit loss (ECL)
approach. ECL involves an estimation of
probability-weighted loss on financial instruments
over their life, considering reasonable and
supportable information about past events, current
conditions, and forecasts of future economic
conditions which could impact the credit quality of
the Company’s loans and advances and
investments.

In the process, a significant degree of judgement
has been applied by the management for:

o Staging of financial assets (i.e. classification in
‘significant increase in credit risk’ (“SICR”) and
‘default’ categories);

e Grouping of the Iloan portfolio under
homogenous pools in order to determine
probability of default on a collective basis;

e Determining effect of less frequent past events
on future probability of default;

o Estimation of management overlay for macro-
economic factors which could impact the credit
quality of the loans.

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circulars
dated March 27, 2020 and May 23, 2020, issued as
part of the COVID-19 Regulatory Package (“RBI
circular”), allowing lending institutions to offer
moratorium to borrowers on payment of
instalments falling due between March 1, 2020 and
August 31, 2020, the Company has extended
moratorium to its borrowers in accordance with its
Board approved policy.

In management’s view and considering the
guidance provided by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, providing moratorium to
borrowers at a mass scale, based on RBI
directives, by itself is not considered to result in a
SICR for such borrowers.

As at March 31, 2020, the Company has made a
provision for impairment loss aggregating Rs.
2,729 lakhs against the loans outstanding. Due to
the significance of the judgments involved in the
estimation of ECL on such financial assets as per
Ind AS 109, it has been considered as a key audit
matter.

Read and assessed the Company's
accounting policy for impairment of financial
assets and its compliance with Ind AS 109 and
the governance framework approved by the
Board of Directors pursuant to Reserve Bank
of India guidelines issued on March 13, 2020.

Read and assessed the Company’s policy with
respect to moratorium pursuant to the RBI
circular and tested the implementation of such
policy on a sample basis.

Tested samples for staging of loans based on
their past-due status to check compliance with
requirements of Ind AS 109.

Tested the assumptions used by the Company
for grouping and staging of loan portfolio into
various categories and default buckets for
determining the PD and LGD rates. Tested the
input data used for determining the PD and
LGD rates and agreed the data with the
underlying books of accounts and records.

Tested assumptions used by the management
in determining the overlay for macro-economic
factors (including COVID-19 pandemic).

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision performed by the
Company in spreadsheets.

Assessed disclosures included in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements in
respect of expected credit losses including the
specific disclosures made with regard to the
management’s evaluation of the uncertainties
arising from COVID-19 and its impact on ECL
estimation.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(b) Transition to Ind AS accounting framework

(as described in Note 45 of the Ind AS financial statements)

In accordance with the roadmap for implementation
of Ind AS for non-banking financial companies, as
announced by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
Company has adopted Ind AS from April 1, 2019
with an effective date of April 1, 2018 for such
transition. For periods up to and including the year
ended March 31, 2019, the Company had prepared
and presented its financial statements in
accordance with the erstwhile generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). In
order to give effect of the transition to Ind AS these
financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2020, together with the comparative financial
information for the previous year ended March 31,
2019 and the transition date balance sheet as at
April 1, 2018 have been prepared under Ind AS.

The transition has involved significant changes in
the Company’s financial reporting processes,
including generation of reliable and supportable
financial information. The transition has also
required the management to exercise judgement in
determining the impact of Ind AS on specific
disclosure requirements prescribed under extant
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) directions.

In view of the complexities involved in
implementing Ind AS discussed above, we have
focused on this area in our audit.

Considered the Ind AS impact assessment
performed by management to identify areas to
be impacted on account of Ind AS transition.
Also considered the changes made to the
accounting policies in light of the requirements
of the new framework.

Understood the financial statement closure
process and the additional controls (including
IT controls) established by the Company for
transition to Ind AS.

Tested the accounting adjustments posted as
at the transition date and in respect of the
previous year to convert the financial
information reported under erstwhile Indian
GAAP to Ind AS.

Assessed the disclosures included in the Ind
AS financial statements, in respect of the
previous periods presented, with the
requirements of Ind AS 101.

(c) IT systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting systems of
the Company are fundamentally reliant on IT
systems and IT controls to process significant
transaction volumes. Automated accounting
procedures and IT environment controls, which
include IT governance, general IT controls over
program development and changes, access to
programs and data and IT operations, are required
to be designed and to operate effectively to ensure
accurate financial reporting.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the assessment
of the general IT controls and the application
controls specific to the accounting and preparation
of the financial information is considered to be a key
audit- matter:

In

assessing the reliability of electronic data

processing, we included specialized IT auditors in
our audit team. Our audit procedures focused on
the IT infrastructure and applications relevant to
financial reporting:

Tested the information systems and the
applications that is available in the Company
in two phases: (i) IT General Controls and (ii)
Application level embedded controls;

The aspects covered in the IT systems
General Control audit were (i) User Access
Management (i) Change Management (iii)
Other related ITGCs; - to understand the
design and the operating effectiveness of
such controls in the system;

Understanding of the changes that were
made to the IT landscape during the audit
period and assessed changes that have
impact on financial reporting;

Tested controls on the IT Application
controls and IT dependent manual controls
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
in the system that were considered as key
internal controls over financial reporting.

e Where deficiencies were noted, we tested
the design and operating effectiveness
compensating  controls and, where
necessary, extended the scope of our
substantive audit procedures.

e Wherever applicable, we also assessed
through direct sample tests, the information
produced from these systems which were
relied upon for our audit.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.
Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the
standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Company’s Board of
Directors is responsible for the other information. The Directors’ Report is expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. When we read Directors’ Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were-of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the
transition date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2018 included in these standalone Ind AS financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018 dated May 16, 2019 and June 7, 2018 respectively expressed an unmodified opinion on
those standalone financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted
by the Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1"
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2020;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements = Refer Note 30(A) to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts inclugdi
there were any material foreseeable losses;
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ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

L\ro N =

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 20102102AAAAGO5126

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Ambit Finvest Private Limited

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is
a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in property, plant and equipment of the Company and accordingly, the
requirements under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(ii) The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iii) (@) The Company has granted loans to companies covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the company's
interest.

(b) The Company has granted loans to companies covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated for the loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular.

(c) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more than
ninety days.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of Section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the services of the Company.

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess,
goods and service tax and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the
appropriate authorities though there has been delays in few cases. Provisions of sales-tax, duty
of excise, value added tax and duty of customs are not applicable to the Company.

(b)-According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed dues in respect of provident
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess, goods and service tax and other statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable, are as follows:
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Naént:t::;he Natlgz :: the Amount Pet:zrg:ggvg::ch Due Date P?:;t;:;t
cP;‘rlj;;er:ional Tax- | professional Tax 60,280 Sepiitis gggg Lo ?Lgr?txt: Not yet paid
rﬂ':;ii:‘mihzzﬁ ~ | Professional Tax 87106 Rl gggg i (::12::(; Not yet paid
ELﬁgsbsional LS Professional Tax 11,600 Api2019to 33;1,; Next month ;gtzh 6June

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales-

(viii)

(ix)

)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute except as follows:

Name of the | Nature of Amount Assessment Forum where dispute is
statute disputed under year to which pending
dues dispute the amount
(Rs. in relates
000)
Income Tax Income 543 | 2015-16 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal
Act, 1961 Tax

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.

Further, monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for
which those were raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate
utilization were gainfully invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the Ind AS financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by
the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
complied with provisions of section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the preferential
allotment or private placement of shares/ fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
According to the information and explanations given by the management, we report that the
for inch the funds were raised.
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(xv)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with directors as
referred to in section 192 of the Act.

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has
registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 20102102AAAAG0O5126

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2020
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Report on Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ambit Finvest Private Limited
(the “Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind
AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these Standalone
Ind AS financial statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and procedures




SR BatviBoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
artered Accountants
| Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Lm w

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 20102102AAAAG0O5126

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24, 2020
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AMEBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

Balance sheet as at 315t March, 2020
(Amornis in ¥ lakhs)
As at Asat Asat
Notes SlstMarch, 2020 31stMarch, 2019  1st April, 2018
ASSETS
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 1444459 119.97 19531
(b) Bank baiance other than cash and cash equivalents 5 200,00 200,00 200.00
(<) Loans 6 78,730.47 75,119.07 40,609.55
{d) investments 7 8,063.04 1,950.86 353.15
(e} Other financisl assets 8 838.60 107.67 0.18
102,276.70 TIA97.77 41,358.19
Nnn-ﬂnmchl Aueu
{) Current tax assets (net) 9 527.08 506.46 54.54
(5) Deferre tax asets (et @ sz #82 B8477
(c} Property, Flant and Equipment 10 142681 6119 641
(@ Goodwill ~~ 1 243668 245668 :
(€) Other ntangible assets 12 e JL06 0.4
(f) Other non-financiai 13 264.77 59.86 4451
515227 342448 690,37
TOTAL ASSETS 107,425.97 80,922.25 42,048.56
LIABILITTES AND EGUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
(a) 'Ihde pnyables p
{0 iolalouistanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 545 498 -
(i) t5tal outstanding dues of creditors other thai micrd
enterprises and small enterprises 335.53 45283 532.13
{b) Debt securities 15 4,203.60 . 1,484.86
(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 16 86,548.64 40,110.46 17,044.60
(d) Lease Habilities i 1,005.34 - .
{e) Other financiai liabilities 17 1,054.84 1,034.94 108.75
' - ' 45,152.90 41,6321 19,16534
Nen-financial Lisbilities | '
(s) Current tax Habilities {net) : . 18,65
(b) Provisiona _ 18 13219 7710 3851
{€) Other non-financial liabilities 19 164.10 1,795.07 4140
' ' ) 29629 137217 8856
TOTAL LIABILITIES 45,849,190 43,505,38 19,253.90
(o) Equity shae capital 2 180922 135613 90440
(b) Other equity 2 60,170.56 36,061.69 21,890.36
TOTAL EQUITY 61,979.78 37,416.87 22,794.66
TOTAL LiABILITIES AND BQUITY 107,026.97 80,922.25 42,0456
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial
siaternents 1-51
In terms of our report attached
S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLF On behalf of the Board of Directors
Accountants
Firm Registration Number: $01003E/ E300005
Leen= ~ 3»—-r @uppy SNy
per Shrawan Jalan f "\ Ganjay Sakhuja Sanjay Dhoka
Partner > Whole Time Director and Whole Time Director,
Membership Number: 102102 || 5= : Chairman CFO and COO
- | RS
Company Secretary




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(Amounts in T lakhs)
Notes Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019

Revenue from operations
Interest income | _ n 12,70747 815407
Net gain an fair valuation of mutual funds : 056

_ Other operating revenue ) 87.70 64.31

Total revenue from operal!m 12,795.17 8,219.24
Other income 24 183.09 440.88

Total income 12,978.26 8,660.12
Finance costs 2 5,004.52 261639
Lmpatrment of financial assets 26 172946 Loes.&3
Employee benefits expense =~ z 2,519.58 14950
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 28 345.78 214
D e S T 5 Ban e

Ier expenses 10,813.25 5978.19
Profit before tax 2,165.01 2,681.93
Tax Expense:

- Current tax ;
for the current year . 70020 409.55
Short/ (excess) provision in respect of eatlier years 10.92 {25.63)
71112 383.92
- Deferved tax (credit)/charge 4 (142.31) 323.98
) ' 568.81 707.90
Profit for the year 1,596.20 1,974.03
Other comprehensive income
“items that wili not be reciassified to profit or ioss
s o thé datined bendh piat % = 5.5
Income tax on above s 1.73 843

Total other comprehensive income 5.16) (20.53)

Tutal oom_grehqnsive inmm Egr the year 1,591.04 1,953.50

Earnings per equity share L]

(Nominal value of equity share ¥10 per share) -
- Basic (3) 1148 16.68
- Diluted (3) ) ) 1148 16.88

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial

statements 1-51

In terms of our report attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP On behalf of the Board of Directors

Accounteants p N
Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 3 — Dll; M
LS — -
L rew Sanjay Sakhuja Sanjay Dhoka
Whole Time Director and Whole Time Director,
per Shrawan Jalan Executive Chairman CFO and COO

Partner . ’

Membership Number: 102102 M‘“‘N‘

Mumbai,

Amrita Pillai
Company Secretary




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020
{(Amounts in T lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACI'IVITIES

Profit before tax 2,165.01 2,681.93
Adjustments for: '
Depreciaﬁon, amortization and impairment 145.68 214
Impairment on financial mst‘umm 1,729.46 1,068.63
Intereatmdeposﬂs with banks (94.59) (51.33)
Interest income on debentures (17.33) -
Net gam un fur valuahon of mutual funds - (0.86)
Employee stock option compensaiion cost 2976 154
Loss on write off of fixed assets - 7.50
Unwimj.igg of discount on secunty deposit (7.27) (1_55)
Profit from redemption of investments in mutual funds (67.24) {401.83)
T 171847 65147
Operaﬂng profit before wnrking capital clnnges 388348 3,333.40
Changes in working capital: '
Ad)ustments for (mcrease)/ decrease i in opetaﬂng assets:
Losns G3036) (50T
Other flnancml assels (670.81) msa
Ad)ustmmts for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payablea (147.03) (4432
Other financial liabilities 19.61 55.08
Other non-financial liabilities {1,630.98) 1,753.70
Provision for employee benefits 4820 049
(7.924.72) (13.217.85)
Cash wped In operations (0a1.25) (0884.45)
Direct tax paid (net) (731.74) (85449)
Net cash used in operaﬁng activities (A} (4,772.97) (10,738.94)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVEST]NG ACI'IVI'I‘IBS

-

Purchase of property plnnt and eqmpment (453.24) (1247)
Purchnse of other mtanglble assets (59.43) (28.29)
Purchase of inveatmenis {200,795.70) (95,527 64)
Pmceeds from snle of investmenls 194,765.10 94.332-61
Paymmtforacqmmhon ofretaxllmdhgdivisdm - (14,654.01)
Deposits placed with banks and financial institution other

than considered in cash and cash equivalents - (5.800.00)
Maturity proceeds of deposits with banks other than ' )
considered in cash and cash equivalents - 5,800.00
Interest reeelved on depos:is with banks and financial institution 53.96 48.26

Net cash used in investing activities (B) {6,/486.31) (15,841.54)




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(Amounts in ¥ lakhs)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

C. CASH FLOW FROM I"INANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from iasue of eqmty slm.'es 23,483.82 12,702.45
Payment of share bsue expenses (541.70) i g3_5'.39)
Proeeeds from borrowin&s (other then debt sesuqm) 25,558.44 3‘1,060.43
Repnyment of borrowings (oﬂ'ner than debt securities) (27,120.26) _(15,737.59)
Proc.eeds from debt eecuﬂties 4,203.60 -
gepaxment of debt securitlee ) - (1,A84.86)
Net cash generated from ﬂmming ecﬂvitles © 25,583.90 26,505.14
Net increue /(decreale} in c:asin and cash egutyalents (A":i-ﬁ?Fé_) 14,324.62 (75.34)
Cash and cash equivalents ot the end of the yenr L n9g7
Net incressef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1432462 7534
Cashandcashequ:valentsaspetﬂ'leba]amesheet'[seemteq 14,444.59 119.97
"cemprlses.
Cash on hand 224 0.66
Balances mﬂl banks __
- In current accounts 642.35 119.31
-In deposlt account with ongmal maturity upto ﬂu'ee months 13,500.00 -
) _ ‘ 1444459 119,97
See scompanying notealfirining part df the financial Msicments 1-51
In terms of our report attached
For 8.R. Batlibot & Co. LLP On behalf of the Board of Directors
tered Accountants
hepwe—= D et
¢ Sanjay Sakhuja Sanjay Dhoka
Whole Time Director and Whole Time Director,
per Shrawan Jalan Executive Chairman CFO and COO
Partner
Membership Number: 102102 :
Mumbai,
Amrita Pillai
Company Secretary

Mumbai,




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Equity Share Capital
(Amounts in < lakhs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,355.18 904.40
Chmgumequﬂ!sharecapimlduﬂngﬂleyear (see note 20) 454,04 450.78
Balance at the end of the year 1,809.22 1,355.18
Other equity
{Amounis in T lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus Total
Statutory | Securities Share Retained
Reserve | premium | options Earnings
outstanding
account
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 153851 | 2873986 154 5,78L78 36,061.69
Profit for the year 5 - - 1,596.20 1,596.20
Other comprehensive income for the year net of
income tax * - - - (5.16) (5.16)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,591.04 159104
Transfer from retained earnings to statutory
reserve 319.24 - - (319.24) -
Received on issue of fully paid up equity shares 22,96010 22,960.10
Received on issue of parily paid up equity
|shares - 69.68 - . 69.68
Share issue expenses - (5¢41.71) - - {541.71)
Compensation cost - - 29.76 - 29.76
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 185775 | 51,2793 51.30 7,053.58 60,170.56 |
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 114370 | 16,5347 - 42809 21,39026
Profi for the year 2 : E7T ] T
Other comprehensive income for the net of
e e : : . enss) os3)
Total comprehensive income for the year . . - 1,953.50 1,953.50
Transfer from retained earnings to statutory . ] ) ) ]
Received on issue of fully paid up equity shares - | 1211280 . - 1211280
llece:lvednniuueofparﬂypaidupeqmtyshnres : 13888 - - 15888
Share issue expenses - (3529) = - (3152155
Compensation cost 3 154 .
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 1,538.51 | ZK,739.86 154 5,781.78 36,(61.69
* Represenis remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
In terms of our report attached
For 8.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP
Accountanis

Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Krg v T

per Shrawan Jalan
Pariner




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

1. Background
Ambit Finvest Private Limited ("the Company") is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The Company is Systemically Important Non-deposit accepting NBFC as
defined under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 with effect from 1st September, 2018. The
Company was incorporated in India as a private company on 24th July, 2006 under the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company is principally engaged in lending activities. The Company's registered office is at Ambit House, 449,
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013,

2. Basis of preparation
2.01 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to
time. The Company has adopted Ind AS from 1st April, 2019 with effective transition date of 1st April, 2018 and
accordingly, these financial statements together with the comparative reporting period have been prepared in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles as laid down in Ind AS, prescribed under Section
133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act) read with relevant rules issued thereunder and the other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, The transition to Ind AS has been carried out from the erstwhile
Accounting Standards notified under the Act read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (as
amended), guidelines issued by the RBI and other generally accepted accounting principles in India (collectively
referred to as 'the Previous GAAP'"). Accordingly, the impact of transition has been recorded in the opening
reserves as at 1st Apri!, 2018 and the comparative previous year has been restated/reclassified.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and
liabilities - measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the financial years presented in the financial statements. including the preparation of
the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2018 being the date of transition to Ind AS.

2.02 Functional and Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All the financial information have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all amounts have been
rounded-off to the nearest lakhs with two decimals, except when otherwise stated.

2.03 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles,
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The
Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. The actual results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results
and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known/materialise, The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Judgment, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:
i. Determination of estimated useful lives of property, plant, equipment [see note 3.03 (iv)]
fi. Determination of estimated useful lives of intangible assets [see note 3.05 (iv)]
ifi. Recognition and Measurement of defined benefit obligations [see note 3.08(b)]
iv. Fair value of financial instruments [see note 3.06(B)]
v. Business model assessment [see note 3.06(C}]
vi. Impairment of financial assets [see note 3.06(E}]
vii, Evaluation of lease, lease term and discount rate [see note 3.10]
vili, Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets [see note 3.12]
ix. Provision for tax expenses [see note 3.13]
x. Estimation of urwertainties relating to the global health pandemic fr




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

3. Significant accounting policies
3.01 Revenue recognition
i. Interest income
The Company recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate ("EIR") on all financial assets
subsequently measured at amortised cost. EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes attributable
to acquisition of a financial asset or assumption of a financial liability and it represents a rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments/receipts through the expected life of the financial asset/financial
Liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

The Company recognises interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets
other than credit-impaired assets. In case of credit-impaired financial assets regarded as ‘stage 3, the
Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of impairment loss of the financial asset at
EIR. If the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on
a gross basis.

Delayed payment interest (penal interest) levied on customers for delay in repayments/non payment of
contractual cashflows is recognised on realisation.

if. Net gain on fair value changes
Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCT), as applicable. The Company recognises gains/losses on fair value
change of financial assets measured as FVTPL and realised gains/losses on derecognition of financial asset
measured at FVTPL and FVOCI,

fii. Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established.

iv. Recoveries of financial assets written off
The Company recognises income on recoveries of financial assets written off on realisation or when the right
to receive the same without any uncertainties of recovery is established.

3.02 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, cash at bank, short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.03 Property, plant and equipment
i Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of purchase price and any attributable cost
such as duties, non -refundable taxes, freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning expenses
incurred in bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

ii. Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company.

ifi. Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment recognised as at 1st April 2018, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment. .

Sy




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

3, Significant accounting policies (contd.)
3.03 iv. Depreciation
The Company provides depreciation on siraight line method based on the useful lives prescribed in Schedule
II of the Companies Act, 2013, except in respect of mobile handsets (included in office equipment) where
useful life has been considered to be 2 years based on the Company's replacement policy for such handsets
given to employees. Depreciation on leasehold improvements is provided over the primary period of lease of
premises.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period with the effect of any changes in the estimation accounted for on a prospective basis.

v. De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.04 Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the company's cash-generating units that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination,

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

3.05 Other intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognised at its cost and subsequently carried at the cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment, if any and are amortised equally over the period of 3 years commencing from the
year in which the expenditure is incurred. On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the
carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as at 1st April, 2018 measured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible agsets.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company. The estimated useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation accounted for on a

prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition is recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (contd.)
3.06 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. All the financial instruments are recognised on the date when the
Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instruments.

A, Initial measurement and recognition of Financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

B. Fair value of financial instruments

The Company measures its qualifying financial instruments at fair value on each Balance Sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in this financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36,

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
i. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;
ii. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
agset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
iii. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

C. Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at either amortized cost or fair value
based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held such that it
best reflects the way the business is managed and is consistent with information provided to management.
The information considered includes:

- the objectives for the portfolio in particular, management's strategy of focusing on earning contractual
interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets lo the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the
sate of the assets;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations
about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as
part of an overall assessment of how the Company's stated objective for managing the financial assets is
achieved and how cash flows are realised;

Mibatnciai assets held within that business




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (contd.)
3.06 C. Financial assets (contd.)
Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purpose of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. 'Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic fending risks
and costs, as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition.

Subsequent measurement
{a} Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of the following conditions are met-
i. it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR and reported as part of interest income in the statement of
profit and loss. The losses if any, arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

(b) Financial asset at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Financial asset with contractual cash flow characteristics that are solely payments of principal and
interest and held in a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cashflows and selling financial assets are classified to be measured at FVOCI. The impairment losses, if
any, are recognised through statement of profit and loss. The loss allowance is recognized in other
comprehensive income and does not reduce the carrying value of the financial asset.

(c) Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Any financial instrument which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortized cost or as
FVOCTI, is classified to be measured at FVTPL. Financial instruments included within the FVTPL category
are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss .

Financial asset held for trading
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or

on initial recognition is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of shori-term profit-taking; or

is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective
hedging instrument}.

D. Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured al amortised cost. A financial liability is classified as at fair
value through profit or loss if it is classified as held-for trading or i5.designated as such on initial recognition.




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (contd.)
3.06 E Impairment of financial assets
The Company epplies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost such as loan given.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (ie, all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and
represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting
date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in
the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous
period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment,
the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

F. Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered info a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Company has retained.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its
or expire.
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3. Significant accounting policies (contd.)
3.06 G. Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets
If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the Company evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the coniractual rights to
cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial
asset is derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset carried al amortised cost are not substantially different, then the
meodification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the Company recalculates the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset as the present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual
cash flows that are discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate and recognises the
amount ariging from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in profit and loss
account. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are
amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset If such a modification is carried ocut
because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss is presented together with impairment
losses. In other cases. it is presented as interest income or cther gain or loss as appropriate.

Financial Habilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified lability are substantially different In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms
Is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

H. Write off
Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety when there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts, If the amount to be written
off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is first treated as an addition to the
aliowance that is then applied against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent recoveries are credited to
impairment on financial instruments in statement of profit and loss.

3.07 Business combination
The Company has used acquisition method of accounting for business combinations. At the acquisition date the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition-date fair values.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recognised for non controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed, After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses,




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

3. Significant accounting policies {contd.)
3.08 Employee benefits
(a) Short term benefits
Short term employee benefits are charged to statement of profit and loss at the undiscounted amount in the
year in which the related service is rendered.

(b) Long term benefit plans

Defined contribution plan - Provident and family pension fund:

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits in respect of
provident and family pension fund, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions
at a specified percentage of the employees’ eligible salary. The contributions are made to the Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner. Provident and family pension fund are classified as defined contribution
plans as the Company has no further obligations beyond making the contribution. The contribution towards
the plan is charged to statement of profit and loss in the year it is incurred.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity:

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement, death while in
employment or en termination of employment, of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each
completed year of continuous service or part thereof in excess of six months on the basis of last drawn
eligible salary. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for gratuity
benefits payable in future, based on an independent actuarial valuation carried out as at the year end.
Actuarial gain/loss is recognised in the other comprehensive income.

Other long term benefit plan - Compensated absences:

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay to eligible employees as per the
Company’s policies. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future
encashment/availment. The liability is provided based on the number of days of unutilised leave at each
balance sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation. Actuarial gain/loss is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.09 Foreign currency transactions
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees which is also the functional currency of the Company.
Transactions in currencies other than Indian rupees (ie. foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies, are re-translated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined, Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. =
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3. Significant accounting policies (contd.)
3.10 Leases - Company as lessee

Upto 31st March, 2019

Leases where the lessor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased
assets are classified as finance leases. Leases other than finance leases are classified as operating leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the lessee recognises the lease as an asset and a liability at lower of the fair value and
the present value of minimum lease payments. Finance lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge at a constant periodic rate of interest and the reduction of the outstanding liability. Operating lease
payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS17,

With effect from 1 April, 2019

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” using the retrospective modified method - obtion B, applied to
lease contracts as on the transition date, In accordance with this transition method, the comparatives have not
been adjusted. The following is revised significant accounting policy related to leases.

Company as lessee

Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The Company recognises a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee,
except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value
assets, For these leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise of fixed lease payments(less any lease incentives), variable lease payments, penalties, etc. The
lease linbility is presented as a separate line in the Balance sheet. The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
asset) whenever

* the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which

case the [ease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

* the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is measured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating
interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

* a lease coniract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease linbility is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Company did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs . They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, a provision is recognised and measured under Ind AS 37. The costs are included in the related right-of-use
asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and u
The right-of-use assets are presented under property, plant and equipment.
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3. Significant accounting policies (contd.)
3.10 Leases - Company as lessee {contd.)
The Company applies Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired.
Variable rents are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related
payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurs and are included in the line “ Other expenses” in the statement of profit or loss.

Practical expedients used-

The Company has considered the below practical expedients under Ind AS 116:

{a) to apply Ind AS 116 to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17 on the date of
initial application without any reassessment;

(b) apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics and in similar
environment;

(c) relied on its assessment whether leases are onerous applying Indian Accounting Standard 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Ind AS 37) immediately before the date of initial application as
an alternate to performing an impairment review;

(d) excluded initial direct costs from measurement of right-to-use asset at the date of initial application;

() elected not to apply the requirements of the standard to leases for which the lease term end within twelve
months of the date of initial application and accounted for those as short term leases;

(f) used hindsight in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease;

3.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal / external factors. If any of such indicator exists, impairment loss is provided in the
statement of profit or loss to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their estimated recoverable
amount. Recoverable emount is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use, Value in use is the
present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its
disposal at the end of its useful life. Net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an
arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the cost of disposal.

3.12 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made,
a contingent liability is disclosed.

best estimates.
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3, Significant accounting policies (contd.)
3.13 Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to

the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

{f) Current tax
Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid in respect of taxable income for the year in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on
the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and
tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

{ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that the taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits
(including Minimum Alfernative Tax credit) to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the taxation laws permit
the entity to make or receive a single net payment.

Minimum Alternative Tax Credit

MAT credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period. In the year in which MAT credit becomes
eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as MAT credit entitlement. This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying
amount of MAT credit entilement is written down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal
income tax will be paid during the specified period.

3.14 Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the
period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the period by the
weighted average number of equity and dilutive equity equivalent shares outstanding during the period, except
where the results would be anti-dilutive. ;
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3. Significant accounting policies (contd.)
3.15 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

3.16 Employee Share based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-
settled share-based transactions are set out in note 39. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At
the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the Stock Opuons

Outstanding Reserve.
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(Amounts in T lakhs)

Asat Asat Asat
31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 1st April, 2018

l. CASHANDCASHEQUIVALENTS

Cashonhand 224 0.66 018
Balance with banks
~in current accounts 642.35 11931 195,13
In deposit accounts with criginal maturity ess than three months 13,800.00 s -
14,444.59 11997 19531

5. BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS o
Deposiis w1th a bank [uee ﬁoomote] 200.00 200.00 200.00
= . . - r - - 1) . * o~ - mm mm m.m
Note: Deposits with  barik i undier fien for the overdraft acily
6. LOANS
(at amortised cost) S
Loans [see footnote 2] 80,306.66 75,687.02 41,9818
Interest ascrued on loans 1,152.65 1,004.61 516.27
' " 8145931 76,691.63 4244730
Less: Impurment loss allowame 2,728.84 1,572.56 1,837.75
78,730.47 75,119.07 40,609.55
(A)Outofabove o
) Secured [see footnotes] 66,578.95 61,953.15 38,762.33
' Less: qumzmmt loss allowance 1,681.20 909.23 1,759.03
T""l (i) 1 - 64.897.75 61,043.92 37.023.30
() Unsecured 14,880.36 1473849 366497
mxgnpmmlmanowm 1,047.64 663.34 78.72
Total () 13,832.72 14,075.15 3,586.25
Total (i+4) 78,73047 75,119.07 40,609.55
(B) Out of above
(@) Loans in India
O ' 81,459.31 76,691.63 4244730
Total (i) 81,459.31 76,691.63 42447.30
() Loans outside India
Tota! (i) :
Total (i+) 76,691.63
Less: I.mpni:ment loss allowance 1,572.56

75,119.07
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6. LOANS (contd.)

(Amounis in ¥ lakhs)
As at Asat Asat
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019  1st April, 2018
Notes:
1. Loans are secured by pledge/lien on the shares /
securities, hypothecation of current/fixed assets,
mortgage of immovable properties, guarantees,
receivables. 66,578.95 61,953.1524 38,782.33
3. ncludes ioans in the form of non-convertible debentures o
aggregating 150.00 - 1,351.81
3. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount- } B T
|Opening balance 7586828 3689 sw|  zesme
- Assets derecognised or repaid ' '
(excluding write-offs) (38,097.69) (478.18) (1.39)) (33,577.26)
 Tranafem o Stage 1 220 . 220)| - -
- Transfers i Siage 2 Boeds 33925 : :
Slranafers o Bape s (865.58) (38.67) 964.25 =
- Jl\_:Eloun!s wﬂ!@ gff (256.38) (0,06} {355.54) (701.98)
Gross carrying amount -
Closing balance 76,585.65 3,725.36 1,148.30 81,459.31
Reconciliation of ECL balance is glven below
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount- B
ening balance 113419 17135 267.03 157257
+ Net assets originated '582.87 67.43 33.38 683.68
(excluding write-offs) 835,04 5.13) (016) 80015
- Transfers io Stage 1 " 058 05) - -
- Tranafers o Stage 2 (64331) 6351 -
Transfers to Stage 3 (68441) (14.08) 2849
- Amiounts Wiitten off [33.38) (73.64) (331.51) (327.54)
ECL allowance - Closing 1,502.78 728.85 497.23 2,728.86
Recoveries of amounts written off 12879
Movement in provision for Expected
Credit Loss during the year (after
adjusting write offs and recoveries
stated above)
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(Amounts in T lakhs)

As at As at Asat
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 1st April, 2018
Units Amount Units Amount Units Amount

7. lNVESTMENTS

(in India)

(A) At amortiled cost
(i) Investments in prefereme shares (unquoted)
Optionally Convertible Cumulative
Participating Redeemable preference shares
of face value of ¥ 10 each fully paid up in
BMI Wholesale Trading Private Limited - - - - 3520000  353.15
(i) investment in non-convertible debentures '

Units of 8.50% redeemable non convertible
debentures of Housing Development
Finance Corporation Limited of face value of
€ 10,000,000 each with maturity date 31st
Auguat, 2020 i == 2 __suiw - = - :
Units of 11.73% (1.50%p.a. upto 15th
September, 2018) redeemable non
convertible debentures of Housing
Development Finance Corporation Limited
offacevalueof!lo,(lmmoenchwiﬂt
maturity date 16th September, 2020 25 255282 = = - =

Units of 8.65% redeemable non convertible
debentures of Housing Development
Finance Corporation Limited of face value of
T 10,000,000 each with maturity date 18th
ber, 2020 5 503.59 - - - -
Units of 8.51% redeemable non convertible
debentures of Housing Development
Finance Corporation Limited of face value of
T 1,000,000 with maturity date 15th July,
2020 ] . 50 502.55 - - - -
Units of 6.98% redeemable non convertible
debentures of National Bank for Agriculture
and Rural Development of face value of ¥
1,000,000 in with maturity date 30th

(B) At fair value through proﬂt or loss

Inveslment in mutual funds (unquoted)

Units of TCICI Prudential Overnight Fund

Direct Plan-Growth of face value of ¥ 100

each fu]ly P;"._d up - - 439,795 450.09 - -
Units of HDFC Overnight Fund Direct Plan-

Growth of face value of ¥ 1,000 each fully

paid up - - 53,174 1500.77 - -

8,063.04 1,950.86 353.15
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{(Amounts in T lakhs)
As at As at Asat
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019  1st April. 2018

8. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(et emorﬂsed cost)

Deposit with a financial institution 228.13 - -
Interest accrued on deposits with banks/a financial institution 4378 315 0.08
Intetest accrued on debentures 43294 - -
Security deposits 106.46 69.15 0.10
Other receivables 27.29 85.57 -

838.60 107.87 0.18

9, CURRENT TAX ABSETS {net)
Advnmetaxnetofprovisionforhx 527.08
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 51st March, 2020

1L

12,

(Amounts in ¥ lakhs)
PROPERTY FLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Particulars Furniture Office  Computers Improvements Right of Total
and equipment and to leaschold  use asset*
fixtrres equipment premises
Gross carrying amonnt
Deemed cost as at 1st April, 2018 267 188 186 . . 641
Acquired through business combination [see note 40] 19.61 10.50 35.54 - - 65.65
Additons 0.68 1.36 9.74 - - 11.78
Disposals 0.85) 2 56) (2.62) - C (7.04)
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31st March, 2019 210 1018 4452 - - 76.80
Additdons 3849 60.35 4727 30509 119337 1,644.57
Disposals - (0.39) - - - ©39)
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31st March, 2020 059 70.20 91.79 305.09 119387 1,721.04
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1st April, 2018 - - - - - -
Depreciation charge for the year 161 240 1242 - - 1643
On deletions {004) (0.42) (0.38) - - (0.82)|
Closing accnmulated depreciation as at 31st March, 2019 157 198 12.06 - . 1561
Depreciation charge for the year 4.63 1084 26.14 37405 200.10 278.76
On deletions - {0.14) - - - (0.14)|
Closing accumulated drjreciation as at Sist March, 2020 620 12.68 38.20 3705 20010 FTED]
Net carrying amount as at S1at March, 2020 ETET) 5752 5358 26608 99327 142681
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2019 2053 821 3246 - - 6119
Net carrving amount as at Ist April, 2018 267 1.88 1.86 - - 6.41
“see note 38
GOODWILL (Amounts in € lakhs)
Particulars Amownt
Deemed cost as at 1st April, 2018 -
Additional amount recognised from business combination [see note 40] 2,436.68
Less: Accumulated impairment loss -
|Closing gross carrying amount as at 31st March, 201% 2,436.68
Less: Accumulated impatrment loss -
|Clesing gross carrying amount as at S1st March, 2020 2,436.68
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Amounts in £ lakhs)
| Particulars Amount
Computer Software
Gross carrying amount
Deemed cost as at 1st April, 2018 0.14
Acquired through business combination [see note 40] 76.61
Additions 2829
Dispimals {1.47)
Closing gross carrying amount as at 31st March, 2019 10357
Additions 59.43
Disposals -
Closing gross cartying amount as at 31st March, 2020 163.00
Accumulated Amortisation
As at 1ot April, 2018 -
Amortisation charge for the year 1271
On deletions (.20
Closing accumulated depreciation as at 51st March, 2019 1251
Amortisation charge for the year 66.83
On deletions E
|Closing accanulated depreciation as at 31st March, 2020 T34
Net carrying amomnt as at 1st March, 2020 BA66
Net carrying amount s at 31st March, 2019 91.06
Net carrving amount as at 1st Apni, 2018 0.14




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(Amounts in T lakhs)

Asat Asat As at
31st March, 31st March, 2019  1st April, 2018

13. OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Prepaid expenses 72.76 4.7 241
Advance to mpplim for capihl goods 2.96 0.90 -
GST/Servme tnx credrt 188.58 - 28.75
Advance leaae rent - 15.79 -
Other advances - - 13.18
264.77 59.86 44.51
14, PAYABLBS
(at amorl:lsed cost) ‘ .
Trade payables [see note 37] 340.98 487.80 582.13
340.93 487.80 53213
15. DEBT SECURITIBS
(ate amorused cost, in India)

Market Linked debentures {secured through the
hypothecation of identified receivables in favour of the

Debenture Trustee) with maturity date 1st June, 2022 4,208.60 - .

8.15% Commercial paper with maturity date 18th May, 2018

(unsecured) - - 1,484.86
4,203.60 - 1,484.36

16 BORROWINGS (OTHER THAN DEBT SRCURITIES)

(at nmorl:sed cost, in Indm)

(&) Term Ioans — v
(i) from banks [see note 16A] 26,507.44 2993349 10,371.08
(ﬂ) from other  parties [ue note IGB] 6,790.82 4,850.22 -

(b) Loans from related parties fsee note 35] x - 4,627.00

(c) Iiner corporate deposit SO - -

(d) Bank overdraft 40.61 5,264.85 2,035.83

(e) Inierest payable on loans to related parties = 053 " 10.69

(f) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 209.77 6137 -
Total 38,548.64 40,110.46 17,044.60
Out of above

() Secured

(n) Unsecured

Total




AMBIT INVEST FRIVATH LIMITED
Notes forming part of the Bnusclal datements for the yser ended Slet March, 2020
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AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming pact of the francial stabnments for Hha yonr snded 31st March, 2020
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AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(Amounts in € lakhs)

Az at As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019  1st April, 2018

17. OTI-IER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(at amorhsed cost) -
Margin money collected from clients/ distributors 323.92 170.67 -
Credit balance in client accounts 495 6.37 -
Proceumg fees payable - - 41.30
Pnyable towards acquisition of business [see note 40] 663.87 775.20 -
Payable to related parties for reimbursement of
expenses 59.43 81.79 6245
Others 217 0.91 -
o 1,054.34 1,034.94 103.75
18. PROVISIONS
Provmon for employee benefits [see note 36] .
Gratuity 89.79 6212 20.76
Compmsated absences 4240 14.98 7.75
132.19 77.10 28.51
19. OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Statutory dues 134.56 57 78 1648
Book overdraft - 1, 703 A1 -
Income received in advance 29.54 33.88 2492
164.10 1,795,07 41.40




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

(Amounts in T lakhs)
As at Asat As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 1st April, 2018
No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount
20. SHARE CAPITAL
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 25,000,000 250000 25,000,000 250000 10,000,000 1,000.00
Insued, subscribed and fully paid-up:
Equity shares of 2 10 each, fully paid up 17675100 176751 13274000 132740 9,044,000 90440
Issued, subscribed but not fully paid-up:
Equity shares of € 10 each € 1, per share
pﬂ;a!d up 4,171,106 41.71 2.777,500 27.78 - -
o 150922 1,355.18 904.40
20.01 Reconciliation of outstanding equity shares
(Amounts in T lakhs}
As at Asat As at
31st March, 31st March, 2019 1st April, 2018
No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount
Fully paid up:
As at the beginning of the year 13274000 132740 9044000 90440 7,544,000 76440
Add: Shares issued during the year 6401100 44011 4,230,000 42300 1,400,000 140.00
As at the end of the year 17675100 176751 13274000 132740 9,044,000 904.40
Not fully paid-up:
As at the beginning of the year 2,777,500 27.78 - - - -
Add; Shares issued during the year 1,393,605 13.93 2,777,500 27.78 - -
As at the end of the year 4,171,105 an 2,777,500 27.78 - -
Total 21,846,205 180922 16,051,500 1,355.18 9,044,000 904.40
20,02 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
As al As at Asat
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 18t April, 2018
No. % No. % No. %
Ambit Private Limited, the holding
Company 12,329,000 5653%* 12,259,000 76.37%" 9,044,000  100.00%
Rising Sun Holdings Private Limited 4,260,020 19.50%"* - - - -
Jeevadravya Bio-Pharma Private Limited 1,179,695 5.40%" - - - -

*calculated based on total number of shares issued

m.osTheCompanyhasomeclauofshams,mmelyequityshares,havhgaparvﬂueoftlﬂpershmwhkhmnkpnﬂpassuhaﬂ
respects including voting rights and entitlement of dividend. The dividend propased by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval by the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of
Mﬁaﬂmh%ﬂaﬂwﬁmmd@hhmﬁehmﬂgMﬁhCmm,mmﬂmdm
preferential amounts.

20.04 During the year, the Company has issued 1,393,605 (Previous year: 2,777,500) equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share
at premium of T 521,69 (Previous year: ¥ 306) per share, out of which ¥ 6 per share has been called up and received as of 3lst
March, 2020, [R 1 per share towards share capital and ¥ 5 per share towards securities premium]. These shares rank pari passu
in all respects including voting rights and entiflement of dividend only to the extent of the paid-up value.

20.05 For details of equity shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Schemes, see note 39.




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(Amounts in ¥ lakhs)
As al Asat As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 1st April, 2018

(i) Statutory reserve [see footnote (i) below] 1,857.74 1,538.50 1,143.70
(if) Securities premium [see footnote (i) below] 51,227.94 28,739.86 1652347
(m)Shareopﬂomontstmdmgaccount[seenoteséandsee

footnote (jii) below] 31.30 1 e
(iv) Retained earnings [see footnote (iv) below] 7,053.58 5,781.78 422309
_ 60,170.56 36,061.69 21,890.26
Notes:

(i) Statutory Reserve
Statutory reserve represents reserve created pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India (Amendment) Ordinance,
1997, as prescribed by section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The amount to be transferred to the
lpeualreservemeqtﬂvalenttom%ofﬂneproﬂtfortheyear

(n)Secunhespremium
Securities premium is represents the premium collected on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the
proﬂsionsoftheCompanies Act, 2013,

hiih) Shueopﬂomouﬁhndhlgamunt
Share options outstanding account represents share options granted by the Company to its employees under
AmbltFmvestEmployeeStockOphonSchemezms [see note 39].

(iv) Retained earnings
It represents the amount of accumulated profits and losses of the Company over the years that can be distributed
by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders and is determined based on the financial statements of
&wCompanyandaIsocmsiderhgtherequiremerﬂsofﬂ\eCompa:ﬂesAct




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

(Amounts in T lakhs)

Year ended

Year ended

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

22, INTEREST INCOME
(on financial assets measured at amortised cost)
inierat on ioam
Inferest on inter corporate deposils
Interest on deposits with banks and financial institution
Intemst mcome on debentures

?3. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

(onﬁmndalasseismeasured&tep?fg‘sed_cost)

Prenﬂumoni-e;ien{phonofpreferemeshm
Prepaymentcharys

24. OTHER INCOME

Unwhtdmgofdjscountonsecuntydeposits
Proﬁtﬁnmredempﬂonofmvestmemsmmutual
funds

Interestonmcometaxrefund

Miscellaneous income

o,
Acwsw e

(on n financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)

e s e

Interest on borrowmgs

26. IMPAIRMENT " OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans

27. EMPLGYER BENEFITS EXPENSE [see note 33]
Salaries and other allowances
Employer‘mmm'ibutlmtoproﬂdentandoﬂlerfunds

Gratuity expense [see note 36(b) ()]
Staff welfare expenses

12,557.37 '7,_95'1.92
38.18 150.82
94.59 51.33
17.33 -

1270747 8,154.07
87.70 15.46
87.70 64.31

7.27 132
67.24 401.83
- 2.87
90.00 30,00
18.58 4.86
183.09 440.88
4,865.52 2,612.15
58.39 -
77.25
3.16 424
5,004.32 2,616.39
1,729.46 1,068.63
1,729.46 1,068.63
2,322.56
119,65
20.79
56.58

2,519.58




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

(Antounts in T lakhs)

Year ended

Year ended

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

28. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

On property, plant and equipment 78.84 16.42
On other mtanglble assets 66.83 12.72
Onnghtofuseasset[seenoteBS] 200.10 -
345.77 29.14
29, OTHER EXPENSES [see note 35]
Rent [see note 38] 15243 155.22
Repairs: Leasehold premises 013 051
" Computers and equipment 220 129
Others 7.03 432
Insurance 18.57 3.42
Rates and taxes 50.34 3312
Professional and legal charges 349.67 230.41
(.‘redrt appralsal charges 140.12 3966
Payments to auditors [see note 31) 19.80 956
Conveyame and travelling 92.36 47.33
Service charges 44.87 33.13
Communication expenses 17.99 557
Recruitment fees 27.78 33.87
Directors' sitting fees and commission 19.96 7.09
Membership and subscriptlon 20.16 28.78
Frinting and stationery 23,79 1234
Computer software expenses 28.35 27.80
Advertisement 0.38 -
Brokerage : 10.51 -
Business promotion expenses 5.63
Postage and telegram - 1043
Bank charges 1151
Donation 141
Expenditure on oorporate soc:al responsibihty fsee note 32] 39.32
Loss on write off. o? ‘ﬁxed assets =

Miscellaneous expenses 2.76

1,214.11




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

(Amounts in ¥ lakhs)

As at As at Asat
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 1st April, 2018
30.| Contingent Liabilities and commitments:
(A) Claims ngalmtthe companymtackmwledged as debis
Incometaxmaﬂersmmpectofearhmyearsunderdmpute
Note:
Future cash outflows in respect of the above are
determinable only on receipt of judgments/ decisions
pending at relevant authority. 543 521 521
(B)|Capital commihnenls
Towards property, plant and equipment 16.44 - -
(Amounts in T lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
31.| Payments to auditors (excludes indirect taxes)
Aud:t fees 16.00 6.25
Tax audlt - 1 60
_Otl\er services . 3.75 171
Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.05 -
32. Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
(Amounts in T lakhs)}
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
{a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company
during the year 39.32 31.93
(b} Amount spent during the year orn:
(1) Conshucﬁonoraoqmsiﬁonofanyasset - -
(ﬂ) On other than (i) above
" Paid to Ambit Odiii Foundation for the objecis
including education, medical help etc. 39.32 31.95
' ' 39.32 31.95

{c) Balance amount vet to be paid




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

33. The Company has expense sharing and other arrangements with its holding company and fellow subsidiary companies.
Arising from the foregoing, the amounts shown in the Statement of Profit and Loss are after inclusion of the following

expenses:
(Amounts in T lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Employee benefits expense .
- Salary and other allowances 17658 161.43
- Employer’s contribution to provident fund 9.20 8.57
- G}'&t{_lllz" expense 5.04 6.68
- Staff Welfare 1854 12.64
Rent 8233 81.84
Repairs 427 au
Rates and taxes 197 0.97
Professional and legal charges 52.13 54.60
Electricity charges 9.10 8.42
I Tioe Expenses 1 LoLd
Service charges 50.24 33.13
Communication expenses 4.53 3.14
Recruitment fees 0.69 151
Directors' sitting fees and commission 8.17 442
Memberslnp and subsmphon 553 3.37
Printing and stationery 187 177
Computer software expenses 268 2.08 |
Business promotion expenses 3.62 1.96
Postage and telegram 0.09 0.15
Bank charges 0.01 0.04
Miscellaneous EXpenses 1.42 0.10




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

34. Values used in calculnﬂng Eu'ninnger share (EPS):

Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

() Numerator: Profit for the year (in % lakhs) 1,596.20 1,974
(ii) Denominator: Weighted average number of equity shares
for basic and diluted earnings per share [see footnote-1] 13,902,997 11,694,451
(iii) Nominal value of equity shares (2 ) 10.00 10.00
() Earmings per share (¢) |
- Basic 11.48 16.88
- Diluted 11.48 16.88
Notes:

1. The partly paid up equity shares are entitled to participate in dividends and accordingly are not
considered to be dilutive potential equity shares, Further, the share options granted during the year
are exercisable at fair value of the equity shares during the reporting period and hence are not
considered as dilutive.

2, There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the
reporting date and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the
restatement of EPS.

35. Related parties disclosures

(i) Name of related parties and description of relationship

(2) An individual owning, indirectly, an interest in the voting power that gives him control
- Ashok Wadhwa

{b) Holding Company
- Ambit Private Limited

(¢) Key Management Personnel
- Sanjay Sakhuja, Whole time Director (w.e.f 1st Decemnber, 2018) and Executive Chairman

- Vikrant Narang, Whole time Director (w.e.f. 11th July, 2017)

- Sanjay Agarwal, Whole time Director (w.e.f. 22nd November, 2018)
- Sanjay Dhoka, Whole-time Director and Chief Operating Officer

- Rahul Gupta, Director till 30th November, 2018

- Sunil Gulati (w.e.f. 27th May, 2019 to 20th September, 2019)

- Ameet Parikh (w.e.f. 18th February, 2019)

- Shalini Kamath (w.e.f. 10th December, 2018)

= Mrutyunjayarao Kasturi (w.e.f. 18th February, 2019)

{d) Fellow Subsidiary Company (with whom there are transactions)

- Ambit Capital Private Limited
- Ambit Wealth Management Private Limited (formerly known as Ambit Broking & Advisory

Private Limited)
/,/,r""_:'-"u N
/ W \
{




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 51at Mavch, 2020

35, Related parties disclosures
{ii) Transactions carried out with the related parties in (i) above, in ordinary course of business:
(Amounis in ¥ lakhs)
Nature of transactions Referredin | Referred in | Referred in Total
i{b) ile) iid)
Interestonloan
- Ambit Private Limited 280 - . 280
(1251 o} 6 (12.51)
- Ambit Capital Private Limited s - = B
. . e v © 0.02) (0.02)
Brokerage {forms part of cost of purchase/sale of
|mw) S
- Ambit Capital Private Limited . : B =
e ) o) (10.10)| (10.10)
- Ambit Wealth Management Private Limited = . 91.70 9.70
0 0 Q Q
- Ambit Capital Private Limited L : 43374 433.74
- () () (i) )
- Suni] Gulati : 957 - 9.57
s e ) o) Q
— _ (o] (©.75) 7] (0.75)
- Shalini Kamath - 828 ~ 325
, _ Q (1.25) e 2.25)
2 o) (0.50) ) (0.50)
- Sunil Gulati . 0.73 - 0.75
i e © (] ¢
Expenses [see note 331 _
'~ Recovered by Ambit Private Limited 465.75 - - 465,75
; .. : (408.59) ¢ () {408.59)
- Recovered by Ambit Capital Private Limited - ; 5,48 9,48
. . p) 3] {8.70) {8.70)
» Ambit Private Limited 957 - . 957
L. . » .. (15.99) ) 9] (15.99)
Expenditure incurred by related party
on behalf of the Company
- Ambit Private Limited 047 -
i , (0.26) 9]
- Sanjay Sakhuja - 96.80
o 8] {78.87)
- Vikrant Narang - 121.63
‘ (o] (125.60)
- Sanjay Agarwal - 11916
3] (70.50)
- Sanjay Dhoka - 90.40
(107.01)




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

35. Related parties disclosures {contd.}
(i) Transactions carried out with the related parties in (i) above, in ordinary course of business {contd.):

(Amoxunis in €lakhs)
Nature of transactions Referredin | Referred in | Referred in Total
ilb) i(c) 1(d)
[Issue of equity shares
- Ambit Private Limited 3.00 - - 300
. (9.429.90) i) (3] (9.42990)
- Sanjay Sakhuja - - -
T (9] (36.00)| 3] Hﬁ-mn
» Vikrant Narag . - - -
o ) (21.00) (] {21.00)
- Sanjay Agarwal - , = 7
o Q| @a2ss ) {1,125.60)
-Sanjay Dhoka - - - o
N (o) (10.50) ) (10.50)
. & © (9] (%)
- Ambit Private Limited 2,155.00 - - 2,155.00
(5,250.00) 0 Q| e
' Ambit Private Limited 2,155.00 = - 2,155.00
(9,150.00) 0 0 G500
- Ambit Private Limited 6,185.00 - - 6,185.00
(4045.00) 2 0| woso
- Ambit Private Limited 6,185.00 - - 6,185.00
E— e (8:672.00) 0 & (8,672.00)
Outstanding at year end
- Ambit Private Limited 55.50 : - 5550
(81.25) %) o] (61.25)
71.99 3 - 71.98
- Ambit Capital Private Limited = . 3.93 398
9] 0 {107) {1.07)
= - - 1.16 1.16
- Rahul Gupia E - 2
9] 8 €) Q
= - 200,00 - 200.00
e Q e ¢
E 165.00 165.00
- Sanjay Dhoka 1.95 - 195
e (30.53) 2] (30:53)
= 40.65 - 40.65
- Vikrant Narang - 136 - L36
) (1.44) v} {1449
81.55 - 81.55
-Sarjay Agarwal : 1.20 3 120
5] ¢ ) 9]
- Ambit Private Limited - ; - P
o] (P 9] e
— 4,627.00 - - 4,627.00
Guarantees and Collaterals Quistanding Corporate
guatantees given by
- Ambit Private Limited 37,205.27
(40,098.51)
13,964.00
Notes:

{i) Figures in brackets are the corresponding figures in respect of the previous year

(ii) Figures in italics are the corresponding figures as of 1st April, 2018.




AMBIT FINVEST FRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

36. Employee Benefits:
(a) Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under 'Employee

benefits expense', in note 27 for the year are as under:

(Amounis in € lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31t March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

Employer's Contribution o Provident Fund 11647 5259

Employer's Contribution $o Pension Funds 270 24

Empioyer's Contribution to ESIC and Labour welfare fund 047 -

Note: The above includes expenses reimbursed to holding company [see note 33)

(b} Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity (Unfunded)
(Amounts tn € lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
I Reconcilistion of defined benefit ubllsaﬁon
Present value of defined benefit obiigation as at the
|beginning of the year 6212 2076
| Acquited during the year [see note 40] - 838
Curtmt service cost 1595 424
'Imemtoost 484 is
‘Benefits pnid - (1.85)
' Actuarial losses on obligations - due to change in financial
-lssum 818 021
Actuariai (gain)/losses on obligations - due to experience {1.29) 28.75
{Present value of defined benefit obiigation as at the end
'of the year §9.80 6212
ll\ Net lllbi.llty mognlsed in the Balance Sheet
>Presentvaluecfdeﬂnedbeneﬂt obligtlimremgnised
iy the Balance Sheet (liability) A0.80 62.12
i Component of employer'l upensel
| Current service cost 1595 424
|Inerest cost 484 1.63
’Totalexpmsesreoog:ﬂsedhﬁesmennmtomoﬂtuﬂ
{Loss under note 27 ‘Employee benefits expense’. 20.79 5.87
!
! Actuarial losses an obligations - due to change in financiai
aequmpticas 8.15 021
Actuarial (gain)/ losses on obligations - due to experlence .29) 2875
Total expenses recognised in the Other Comprehensive
Income (OCT) 6.89 28.96
b
IVi Actuarial assumptions
Mortality table Indian Assured | Indian Assured
Lives Mortality | Lives Mortality
(2006-08) (2006-08)
Ultimate Ultimate
Discount rate 6.84% 7.79%
Salary escalation 7.00% 7.00%

V; {a) The estimates of rate of escalation in salaries considered in actuarial valuation takes into account
inflation, sendority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the
employment market.

(b) The discounting rate is considered based on market yleld on government bonds having currency
and terms consistent with the currency and terms of the post-employment benefit obligations,

"
SR




AMBIT FINVEST FRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

3. Employee Benefits (contd).
(b) Defined Benefit Plan - Gratulty (Unfunded) [contd.]

{V]) Sensitivity analysis (Amounts in € lakks)
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

Increasef(decrease) on present value of defined benefit obligation at
the end of the year:
1% increase in rate of discounting (857 (4.87)
1% decrease in rate of discounting 10.21 573
1% increase in rate of salary increase 10.09 571
1% decrease in rate of salary increase (8.68) {4.54)
1% increase in rate of employee turnover (1.27) {0.30)
1% decrease in rate of employee turnover 132 0.27

The above sensitivity analyses is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting perlod) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance
sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to
the prior period.

Expected contribution to post employment benefit plan for the year ending 31st March, 2021 is ¥ 20.52 lakhs.

(VII) Maturity analysis of the benefit payments: from the employer (Amounts in € lakhs)
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reparting:
1st following year 2052 2043
2nd following year 0.66 047
3rd following year 0.87 0.58
4th following year 1.07 0.73
5th following year 127 0.87
Sum of vear= 610 10 8.68 5.68
(¢} Other long term benefit-compensated absences: (Amounts in € lakhs)
- Year ended Yeer ended

31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

Amount recognised/ (reversed) in respect of compensated absences in the
Statement of Profit and Loss under 'Salarles and other allowances’ [see note
27). 36.24 {0.96)

{(d} The information given in (b) and (¢} above are as certifled by the actuary.

(e) Risks associated with defined benefit plans
Gratuity is a defined benefit plan and company is exposed to the following risks:

{i} Interest rate risk:
A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. rate will increase the present value of the Hability requiring
higher provision.

(i1} Salary risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As
such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's lability.

{iil) Asset Liability Matching (ALM) risk:
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. The company has to manage pay-out based on pay as yon
go basis from own funds.

(iv) Mortality risk:
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable Hll
any longevity risk.




AMBIT FINVEST FRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

37. Disclosure required under section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

(a) Principal amount outstanding is ¥ 5.45 lakhs {31st March, 201%: T 4.98 lakhs and 1st April, 2018: T Nit).

No amount of interest was due and remaining unpaid to Micro, Small and Medium suppliers as at the end of the
year;

(b) No amount of interest was paid during the year in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Smali and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, and no emount was paid to any Micro, Small and Medium suppliers beyond the appointed
day during the year;

() No amount of interest was due and payable during the year towards delay in making payment under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

{d) No amount of interest was accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year.

‘The above information in respect of the Micro and Small enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties
have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the
anditors.

38. Operating leases:
The Company has operating leases for premises. These lease arrangements range for a petiod between 2 to 6 years,
which include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases. Most of the leases are renewable for future period on
mutually agreed terms and also include escalation clauses.
(Amounts in € lakhs)
Asat As at

31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

" (1) For a petiod not later than one year 301.87 59.61
(i) For a period later than one year and not later than five years 928.53 11.03
({1} For a period later than five years 8.04 .

Total 123844 70.64

Upto 31st March, 2019, operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
accordance with Ind AS 17, With effect from 1st April, 2019, The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” using
the retrospective modified method-Option B, applied to lease contracts as on the transition date. In accordance with
this transition method, the comparatives have not been adjusted.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements
in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and
leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the lease paymenis as an operating expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.,

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at
or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease
term and useful life of the underlying asset. The right-of-use assets are presented under property, plant and
equipment [see note 10].

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. The effective interest rate for lease liabilities
considered is 11%.

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in note 41.
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39, Share based payments - Employee Stock Option Scheme:
During the previous financial year 2018-2019, the Company has adopted Ambit Finvest Employee Stock Option
Scheme 2018 ("ESOP Scheme") for grant of stock options to the eligible employees as approved by the Board of
Directors and Shareholders. The scheme will continue till the time of expiry/exercise of all the granted stock
options.

The ESOP Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 10th December,
2018 and by the shareholders of the Company at the Extra Ordinary General meeting held on 31st December, 2018.
Terms of ESOP Scheme are as indicated below.

Pursuant to the ESOP Scheme, the Company has granted stock options to the eligible employees of the Company
under equity settlement scheme against each underlying share of the Company of % 10 each.

The vesting and exercise particulars of the stock options sranted are as follows:

Vesting period for | As part of the vesting criteria, options would accrue on time-basis and/or performance-linked
options granted  |conditions, as determined by the Compensation Committee. All options granted and accrued,
would vest as under:
Particulars | For the Options that are Granted on or | For the Options that are Granted after
before 28th February, 2019 28th February, 2019
First Vesting |Accrued options not exceeding 33.33% | Accrued options not exceeding 33.33%
and the of granted options on 31st March, 2021. [of granted options on the third
quantum anniversary of the date of the issue of]
Letter of Grant.
Second Accrued options not exceeding 33.33%| Accrued options not exceeding 33.33%
Vestingand |of granted options on the firstjof granted options on the fourth
the quantum |anniversary of the First Vesting. anniversary of the date of the issue of
Letter of Grant,
Third Vesting |Accrued options not exceeding 33.34% | Accrued options not exceeding 33.34%
and the of granted options on the second|of granted options on the fifth
quantum anniversary of the First Vesting. anniversary of the date of the issue of
Letter of Grant.

Exercise period

Within 3 years from each vesting date

The Company has followed the fair value based method of accounting in accordance with Ind AS 102 'Share based
payments' for stock options granted.

All options granted under the ESOP Scheme have been valued using an Option Pricing Model (Black Scholes
Model). The main inputs to the model, the fair value of stock aptions, total charge and the compensation expense

recognised are as under:

Fair Value of each Equity Shares
as per independent valuation

T 306 (for options granted during the financial year ended 31st March, 2019)
¥ 306 (for options granted during the financial vear ended 31st March, 2020)

Lapse (Forfeiture) Rate |estimated)

10% per annum

Volatility

As the shares of the Company are unlisted, the volatility is considered as 0%

Risk Free Rate

8% per annum

Averapr Exercise period

1.5 years

Time to Maturity {no. of days)

Vesting period + Average exercise period for each graded vesting

Weighted average fair value of
options granted

102

Total charge over vesting period

T 10,707,249

Charge for the year aggregating
[included in Salary and other
allowances under Employee
Benefits Fx penses under note 27|

72,976,198

Total charge up to the end of the
year for ESOP Scheme aggregating

3,129,890




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

39, Share based payments - Employee Stock Option Scheme: (contd).
() The particulars of number of options granted, lapsed, exercised, outstanding, exercisable at the year end and weighted average

exercise price are as follows:
(Amounts in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st March, 2020 For the year ended 31st March, 2019
No.of | Weighted| Weighted No.of |Weighted| Weighted
options average average options average average
exercise | remaining exercise | remaining
price | contractual price | contractual
T life (years) 3 life (years)
Outstanding as at the beginning of the year 70,000 306.00 3.00 - — -
|Granted during the year 85,000 306.00 70000 | 306.00
ansed durmg the year 20,000 306.00 - -
Exercised during the year - - - -
|Outstanding at the end of the year 135,000 |  306.00 253 70000 |  306.00 3.00
Exercisable at the end of the year - - - - = -

40. The Company has entered into a Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) dated 30th August, 2018 for purchase of SME lending
business of Finmax Credit & Pinance Private Limited as a going concern by way of shump sale.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair
values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed inchude contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are
measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not

probable,
As per the requirements of Ind AS 103, the Company has arrived at fair values for each of the component as under-
(Amounts in  lakhs)
Amount
Market value of Invested Capital 15477.51
Property, plant and equipment 16236
I_._.oam 20,580.75
iniyrest scon el on logme 21472
Total Assets 20,937.73
Borrowmgs ‘ 7,743.02
Conhngent provision against standard assets 8251
Provmim for gratuity 8.38
Provlsmn for eumpmabd absences 10.75
money collected from climh/ distributors 52.64
Total Liabilities 7,897.10
Net Assets 13,040.63
Restdual Goodwill 2,436.68




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 51t March, 2020

&1, Maturity snalysis of assets and Hahilities -

The table below shows an analysis of sesets and Hshilities anslysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or setiled,

{Amounis in € lekin}
As 2t 31at March, 2020 As at 51s1 March, 2019 As at 1nt April. 2018
Particulars Within After Tetat Within'  “Alfter Total Wiihtn A i
12months 12 months 12months 12 months 12 months 12 monhe
ASSETS
Finantial Asséls ) )
(8] Cash and cash e UM - waum| 9w - i iBE| 1S -+ i%w
a:)mummm&iinduhqmm 200.00 20000 E0000 - ¢ 2000 200 1 0,00
{c) Loans 2755 BWeA% AMA| ViNE Hih, WBitd| B5E Bk a8
D o 2 TR T iEE| o CWE WD
| {e) Chver financial assets BOASY o0 89050 87 w15 I om; odb; o0ig
[Rou Bl Ames — -
{2) Cimrent tax ssvety (net) 50247 2462 208 50646 ! P Bosde 5ist, -4 545§
&) Dafocrd o snpuis (ret) g ary  eam| - %8| WD - T SAm
© Propay i ant e © smn sem| &R @S| o Gy
- 243668 248668 . jiSeis| 256 T - o
(o) Offer ntangible assets - 83.66 8366 - 9ige, Teide - Dia: 4
{g) Offer non-linancial a 25566 9.09 26476 5Ty - .84 45 I i
TOTAL ABBETS 57081 @FNIS 1074597 | 2000512 9710 M05n2[ 1602148 260007 42085
:
[u’nﬁﬁgmu f
(e) Trade Payables t ]
{#} total outstinding duike of miicfo srderpriss and t i
small enterprises B 5AS 49 - 498 - - i -
mhﬁiwﬁhdkgd_ufmmoh *iH S r s Bad13 - F s3iis
1wA . 8353 ; e —
- A4S = - =1 LEMM] _ —ii LS
424 2451081 MSAS4| 184721, 260825) 41046 1131, A7) 170460
200,97 767 100534 K P T ! o
: , ! a
368 15219 ! i
16410 16410 :
1606019
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42. Reconciliation of effective tax rafe
(Antounts in T lakhs)
[Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Profit before tax 2,165.01 2,681.93
Company’s domestic {ax rate _ 25.17% 29.12%
Tax charge arge using Company's Statutory rate 544.89 780.98
Tax effectof: i =
Expenses disaliowed for tax purpose 6.07 917
Income subject to tax atlowerrates . =
Short/ (excess) provision in respect of earlier years 10.92 (25.63)

P

Total Income tax expense 568.81 707.90

(17.08)
(39.54)

Note:
TheCompmyhnselectedtommdseﬁleop&onofabwerhxmtepmvidedmderSecﬂonllSBAAofﬂwlmome—taxAct,l%l,
as introduced by the Texation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 dated September 20, 2019, Accordingly, the Company
recogrﬁsedpmvisionﬂorincomehxandre—mmuredmdefenedhxmbads&wmteprovidedmthenidsecﬁon.

43. The major components of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) arising on account of temporary differences are as follows:
(Amounts in ¥ lakhs)
As at Asat As at
31st March, 2020 31stMarch, 2019  1st April. 2018

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities):
impairment on financial instruments - foans 686.79 43595 530.01
Remeasurement of the defiried benefit plans 36.73 2141 | 1062
Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset (261.08). (185.30); {0.60)/
Recognition of investment at amortised cost 0.19 il

Recognition of borrowings at amortised cost (105.83) (©251); (14.47)

e T

 Messurement of inancial asset at fair valiue through profit or loss
Net deferred tax asset ‘ ’
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44, Movement in deferred tax balances

Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended 31st March, 2020

(Amounts in T lakhs)
Net balance Recognised in Recognised Net balance
1st April, 2019 profit or loss inO0C1 31st March, 2020
Deferred tax auet] (liahiliﬂel)' ]
EiR on lease untexpense ' - ﬁ's__d_,_) B (54.54)
Impairment on financial instruments - foans 43396 - 686.79
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 21.41 "1523'95 173 36.73
Property plant and equipment and intangible
oot (18550) 78) : (s1.08)
Recoy\iﬁonofimfmw at amortised cost - 0.19 - 0.19
Recognition of botfowings at amortised cost (62.51) (43.32) - (105.83)
Recogition of loans given at amoriised cost 6192 (18.55) ) 4337
Interest expense on leased assets . 19.44 | z 19.44
Depredaﬁon on leased assets - 4,3,56 | . 48.20
Measurement of financial asset at fair value
_througt or loss (0.25) 0.25 - -
Net deferred tax asset 26923 14231 173 413.27
Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended 31st March, 2019
(Amounts in ¥ lakhs)
Net balance Recognised in Recognised Net balance
1st April, 2018 prefit or loss in OC1 31st March, 2019
Deferred tax mel: : ) ! i
Impairment on financial instruments - ioans 53001 os.05) - 43396
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 1062 236 ; 8431 214l
Property, plant and equipment and intangible
agezt (0.80) (184.70) - (13530)
Reoogniﬁon of investments at amorl:lsed cost (0.33) 0.33 -
ghition o W‘tmﬂ"’d__. (1447) (48.04) - (625 51)
Re_cogig?n of foans given a"t_amorﬂf'e& 59.54 338 = 6192
Meagurement of financial asset at fair value ‘
. through profitorloss . . = (0.25) - (0.25)
Net deferred tax asset/(liabilities) 584.77 (323 98) 843 269.23




AMBIT FINVEST FRIVATE LIMITED
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45, First-time adoption of Ind AS
These are the Company’s first finencial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The Company has prepared its Ind AS compliant financial statements for year ended on 31st March, 2020, the comparative period ended
on 31st March, 2019 and an opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2018 (the date of transition), as described in the note 3 om
significant acepunting policies. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its previous GAAP financlal
statements, including the Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2018 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 315t March, 2019,

For periods ended up to the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Company had prepared its financial statements in accordance with the
accounting standards netified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAP).

{A) Mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions applied in the transition from previous
GAAP to Ind AS, which were considered to be material or significant by the Company,

(I) Mandatory exceptions
The Company has adopted all relevant mandatory exceptions set out in Ind AS 101 which are as below:

(i) Estimates
On assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP, the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the
estimates under Ind AS as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates.

(if) Impairment of financial assets
The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has
used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date
that financial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the
Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether
there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.

(tify Classification and measurement of financial assets
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assesa classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS, Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised
cost based on the facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on the facts and clrcumstances existing at the
date of transition. Measurement of financinl assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except when the same is

impracticable.

(iv) Classification of debt instruments
The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they meet amortised cost criteria or fair
value through other comprehensive income based on the facts and circumstances that existed as of the transition date.

(v) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities .
The Company has applied the de-recognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for the
transactions occurring on after 1st April, 2018 (the transition date),

{II) Optional exemptions availed

(i) Deemed cost of property, plant and equipment and intangible Assets
The Company has elected to use the exemption available under ind AS 101 to continue the carrying value for ail of its property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets as recognised in the finamcial statemnents as at the date of transition to Ind AS measured as per
the previous GAAP and used as its deemed cost at the date of transition.

{li) Leases
Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with Ind AS
17, this assessment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS 101 provides an option to make this
agsessrnent on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition to Ind AS, except where the effect is expected to
be material, The Company has elected to apply this exemption for such contracts/ arrangements. However, with effect from 1st April,
2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” using the retrospective modified method-Option B, applied to lease contracts as
on the trangition date.

(i) Fair value measurement of financlal assets or financial iabilities at initial recognition
The Company has elected to measure the financial assets or financial abilities at fair value on initial recognition prospectively to
transactions entered into on or after the date of transition to Ind AS.
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45. First-time adoption of Ind AS (contd.)
(Amounts in € lakhs)
{T) Reconciliation of total equity as at 1st April, 2018 and 318t March, 2019 summarised in below table:

Particulars Notes As at As at
31st March, 2019 1t April, 2018

Tofal equity (shasebolders Funds) snde previons GAAP 7 YUY
fn-dASAdjulhnen_w LT T

Discounting of security deposit ~~ ~ ~ " @ T T (@2 ]
Reoogmhoﬁ of investments at amortised cost __ L T ) _“" _. —: ! _ 115
Renog‘mhon of borrowings at amortised cost (i) 214.67 50.19
Recognition of loans given at amortised cost ™ O @izen (206.46)
Reversal of amortisation of goodwill TTOTT w7 T 26186 B
Unrealised gain on fair value changes ) " 0.86 -
Provision for expected credit ioss (v 1,014.00) B27.70)
Deferred tax on the above adjustment (viti) 218.27 139.25
Total adjustmnent o equity T - ()
Total equity under Ind AS 37416.87 32 794.66

(I} Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended on 31st March, 2019 summarised in below table:

Particulars Notes | Year ended

31st March 2019
Proﬂt as per previous GAAP 2,141.42
Ind AS Ad]ushngnb'
Dmoounlmg of secunty depos:t (T) (0.55)
Recognition of investments at amartised cost (i) (1.15)]
Recognition of borrowings et amortised cost (i) 164.49
Recognition of loans given at amortised cost ) (6.14)
Reversal of amortisation of goodwill ) 26136
Unrealised gain on fair value changes (). - 086
Provision for expected credit loss ) (686.31)
Deferred tax on the above adjustment (vitd) 79.00
Actuarial loss on iong term employee benefis [N 2896
Deferred tax on the above adjustment (wili) (8.43)
Total effect of transition to Ind AS i (167.39)
Proﬂt for ﬂle yeu' under Ind AS 1,9_7:1.0'3
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (20.53)
Total comprehensive income under Ind AS 1,953.50

(I} Effect of Ind AS adoption on the statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2019
Year ended 31st March 2019
Previous Effect of Ind AS
GAAP transition to Ind
AS

Net cash flows from operating activities (10,810.22)
Net cash flows from investing activities (15,3'6?;4?)
Net cash ﬂows ﬁ'om ﬁmndng activities " 26,603
Net decrease in cash and cash quivalents
Cash and cashequ:valents atthebegmmng ofﬂrepenod
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period
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45. First-time adoption of Ind AS (contd.)
(IV) Notes to reconciliations

)

(i)

(1)

)

)

)

(vif)

(i)

{ix)

Discounting of security deposit:

Under Indian GAAP, interest free security deposits given to lessors (that are refundable in cash) are recorded at their
transaction value. Under Ind AS, all financial instruments are required to be measured at thelr fair value on inital
recognition. Accordingly, security deposits given to lessors have been fair valued under Ind AS. Difference between
transaction value and fair value has been recognised as prepaid rent. Prepaid lease rent is amortised over the lease term
and interest Income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on unwinding of security deposits.

Recognition of investments at amortised cost:

Under previous GAAF, transaction costs were charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred. Ind AS
109 requires transaction costs incurred towards investments to be included in the carrying emount of investments on
initial recognition. These costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the investments as
part of the interest income by applying the effective interest rate method.

Recognition of borrowings at amortised cost:

Under previous GAAP, transaction costs were charged to the statement of profit and loss as and when incurred. Ind AS
109 requires transaction costs incurred towards crigination of borrowings to be deducted from the carrying amount of
borrowings on initial recognition. These costs are recognised in the statement of prafit and loss over the tenure of the
borrowing as part of the interest expense by applying the effective interest rate method,

Recognition of loans given at amortised cost:

Under previous GAAP, processing fees income was recognised in the statement of profit and loss as and when
received. Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards loans given to be included in the carrying amount of
loans given on initial recognition. This income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the tenute of the
loans as part of the interest income by applying the effective interest rate method.

Reversal of amortisation of goodwill:
Under previous GAAP, goodwill was amortised over its useful life and tested for impairment, Under Ind AS, Goodwill
is not amortised and only tested for impairment.

Effect of measuring investments in mutual fund at fair value through profit or loss
Under previous GAAP, investments in mutual funds were carried at cost and tested for other than temporary
diminution. Under Ind AS, such investments are carried at FVTPL.

Impairment on financial instruments:
Under previous GAAP, provision for doubtful loans given was recorded based on incurred loss model Under Ind AS
109, allowance for doubt debts is determined based on expected credit loss model.

Deferred tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focusses on differences
between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes
using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between carrying amount of an asset or
liability in the balancesheet and its tax base. The application of balancesheet approach has resulted in recognition of
deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP. The Ind AS adjustments have

a corresponding deferred tax impact.

Employee benefits:
Under previous GAAP, actuarial gain /loss on defined benefit plans were charged to statement of profit and loss.
Under Ind AS, such remeasurements are required to be presented in other comprehensive income.
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46. Financial instruments

46.01 Capital Managernent
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are:
a. to ensure Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
b. to provide adequate return to shareholders.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt and total equity of the Company. The Company manages its
capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders
through an optimum mix of debt and equity within the overall capital structure. The Company’s management reviews the
capital structure of the Company considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

46.02 Categories of financial instruments and Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices
Level 2: The fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
Level 8: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level

(Amounts in T lakhs)
Particulars Fair Value As at As at Asat
Hierarchy | 31st March, 2020 | 31stMarch, 2019 | 1st April, 2018
{Level)
(T) Financal assets
" Measured at fair value through profit or loss
(a) Invesh:nem's in mut'ual Ifunds 1 - 1,950.86 -
Meuured at amortised cost _
(a) Loans 3 78,730.47 75,119.07 40,609.55
(b) Investments 3 8,063.04 - 353.15
(c) Other financial assets 3 33456 6915 0.10
(1) Financial liabilities
Mealured at ammﬁsad cost
{a) Debt securities 3 4,203.60 - 1484.86
(b) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 3 38,548.64 40,110.46 17,04450
(c Lease linbilities 3 1,005.34 -

The meanagement has assessed that the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, loans at amorised cost,
investments, other financial assets, trade payables, debt secutities, borrowings, lease liabilities and other financial
liabilities are reasonable apppropriation to theiur fair value.

46.03 Valuation Process
- The Company has valued the mutual fund investments at FVTPL referring the net asset value as on the reporting date.
- Preference share investments are valued at fair value based on discounted cash flow method considering the discount
rate which is based on the market borrowing rate.

45.04 Financlal risk management objectives
TheCompanyhmexpmmmmg nsksaﬂsmgfmmﬁ:minlhstmmems
L Market risk ;
ii. Interest rate risk; ;:-"
ifl. Credit risk ; and ; ] q_f‘:']
(. f

iv. Liquidity risk

(i) Market risk Wz
Marketnsk:stheﬂsk&mh}mnges‘f"marketpmes - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices -
will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, The Company is domiciled in
India and has its revenues and other transactions in its functional currency Le. Rupees. Accordingly the Company is
not exposed to any currency risk. Also the Company does not hold any equity investments in listed entities,
accordingly the Company is not exposed to any equity price risk.



AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

46. Financial instruments (contd.)
46.04 Financial risk management objectives (contd.)
(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates to variable rate borrowings from financial institutions. The Company's fixed rate borrowings from
are carried at amaortised cost and are not subject to interest rate risk since neither the carrying amount nor the
future cash flow will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

(Amounts in € lakhs)

Particulars As At As At As At
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 | 1st April, 2018
Fixed rate borrowings 11,968.95 6,365.52 6,122.55
Variable rate borrowings 30,783.29 33,744.94 12,406.92
Total Borrowings 42752.24 40,110.46 18,529.47

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate borrowings
The below table mentions the impact of increase or decrease in the interest rates of variable rate borrowings on
statement of profit and loss.

{(Amounts in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars Impact on Profit or Loss
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Tnterest Rote increase by 50bps* (155.92) (16872
Interest Rate decrease by 50bps* 153.92 168.72
* holding all other variables constant

(lif) Credit risk
Credit risk’ is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s loans and advances to
customers and investment debt securities. The Company’s policies for computation of expected credit loss are
set out below:

1. Expected credit Loss Methodology for loan portfolio
The objective is to have sound methodology for computation of Expected Credit Losses (ECL) that address
policies, procedures and controls for assessing and measuring credit risk on all lending exposures,
commensurate with the size, complexity and risk profile specific to the Company including the parameters and
assumption.

In formulating the methodology, the Management has considered the requirements of Para 5.5. and Appendix
B - Para 5.5 of Ind AS 109. As per para 5.5.17 of Ind AS 109 on measurement of expected credit loss,

An entity shall measure expected credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:

(a) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcomes;

() the time value of money; and

(c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The methodology outlined based on Ind AS 109 is a three stage approach for the recognition of impairment
losses. The three stages of the model are based on the changes in the credit quality of the financial instrument
sincemcepﬁmmdﬂ\emeasmemmtofupectedaedithu(ECLEfor&\eseassebhdependmton&mstnge

classification as of the reporting date.lndASlwnlsopem%@; proach.
/

/ f{%f ;%i.‘%"]
(%, o))

]
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st Maxch, 2020

46. Financial instruments (contd.)
46.04 Financial risk management objectives {contd.)
(iil) Credit risk (contd.)
2. Portfolio Segmentation
For the purpose of ECL computation, entire loan portfolio is segmented into homogenous risk segments. Common
factors for segmentation may include asset classes, internal rating grade, size, geography, product, etc.

The various loan products include:
(i) Loan against property
(i) SME Unsecured
{iif) Working capital loans
(iv) Education Loan
(v) NBFC Loans
(vi) Margin Punding
{vii) Promoter Funding
(viii) Business Loans / Structured Loans
(ix} Real Estate Funding
(x) Business Loans / Structured Loans
(xi) Real Estate Funding

3. Stage wise Classification of Exposures
Financial assets shall be classified into appropriate stages through the following three stages based on the changes
in credit quality since initial recognition: Default shall be determined in a manner consistent with that used for
internal credit risk management.
Stage-1: The Company classifies all advances up to 0-30 days default under this category.
Stage-2:  Financial assets past due for 31 to 90 days are classified under this stage.
Stage3: 90 days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as credit
impaired. If an event (for eg. any natural calamity) warrants a provision higher than as
mandated under ECL methodology, the Company may classify the financial asset in Stage 3
accordingly.
4. Probability of Default (PD)
The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only
happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognized and is still
in the portfolio. 12 month PD shall be derived based on historical data, default history based on credit rating and
other method as suitable. Life time PD for Stage 2 Loans is derived based on survival formula which is (1 -
(Probability of surviving in year 1) » remaining tenure).
(1) SME Loans:
As the SME division has a operating history of less than five years, we had appointed an independent
agency ICRA Analytics Limited for providing assistance and guidelines for the ECL calculation. Basis the
guidance of the ICRA Analytics Limited the following methodology adopted for the purpose arriving at the
Probability of Default for the SME division.

(ii) Structured Finance Loans:
The Structured Finance Division being having a operating history of more than five years and completed
one lifecycle. In order to ascertain the ECL, the management has done a detailed assessment of the portfolio
basis the credit, repayment track record, risk associated with the business, credit comfort/group support
etc. and along with Default Study Report by a credit rating agency.
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46. Financial instruments (contd.)
46.04 Financial risk management objectives (contd.)
(iii) Credit risk {(contd.)
4, Probability of Default (PD) (contd.)

4.1 Loss Given Default (LGD)
The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It
is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to
receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the
Exposure at Default (EAD).

4.2 Exposure at Default (EAD)
The Exposure at Default is credit exposure of the Company. It is an amount that the Company is exposed to
when a loan defaults. This includes the undrawn commitments to the extent the Company is obligated to
honour it. EAD is computed as sum of principal outstanding (including overdue amount), interest accrued
(due and overdue), undrawn commitments (expected drawdowns on committed facilities), other charges less
any advance recetved less the value of collaterals after considering necessary haircuts, as applicable.

5. Expected Credit Losses (BCL) approach

Particulars Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(Performing) {(Under-performing) {Non-performing)
ECL model PD / LGD Model PD / LGD Model Cash flow model
BCL. . . 12 months ECL Life ime ECL Life time ECL.
ECL Computation (P * LGD * EAD) (PD»* LGD * EAD) Expected Cash Flow
Notes:

1. Stage wise classification of exposure into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3
ii. PD - Probability of Default
iii. LGD - Loss Given Default
iv. Exposure At Default

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime
expected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which
case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that represent the ECLs that result
from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated either on an individual basis or on a collective basis,
depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

46. Financial instruments (contd.)
46.04 Financial risk management objectives (contd.)

(iv) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The
Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the
Companv’s reputation.

The Company has access to funds from banks and financial institutions. The Company also constantly monitors funding
options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial flexibility.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The below table provides details of the undiscounted cash flow (principal and interest ) of non-derivative financial liabilities
of the Company based on the remaining contractual maturity :

(Amounts in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars 1year 1-2 25  Morethan Total Carrying
or less years years 5 years amount
As at 31st March, 2020
{a) Trade payables 340.98 - - - 340.98 340.98
{(b) Debt securities - - 4,203.60 - 4,203.60 4,203.60
() Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1423815 973313 14,577.36 - 38,548.64 38,548.64
{d) Lease liabilities 301.87 306.73 621.80 804 123844 1,005.34
(e) Other financial liabilities 1,054.34 - . - 1,054.34 1,054.34
' f
As at 31st March, 2019 i
{a) Trade payables 48780, - - . o 48780 487.80
(b): Borrowings (other than de_bt securitles) 1849721 ; 1194486  9,668.39 | - 40,110.46 40,110 46
©). Other ﬁnam:ml linblhuel 1,034.94 I - - l - % 1,034.94 1,034.94
i H ' I {
As at Ist April, 2018 ! ! o
(&) Trads payables 52213 - T N Y —
(b): Debt securities 148486: - @ - i - l [ 1484.86
) ’Bormwm_ (other than debt securities) 6,658 32 { 384182 191747} - 12,417 61 12,417.61
(d) Other financial Habiltties - - - 103.75 103.75
Financing arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:
{(Amountsin ¥ lakhs)
As at Asat Asat
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 1st April, 2018
Floating rate term loan/Cash credit bl 2/639.00
Expiring within one year 3,500.00 2,639.00
Expiring bevond one year - -
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47. Disclosures as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Depaosit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016:

{1) Capital to Risk Asset Ratio ("CRAR")

As at As at Asat

31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 | 1st April, 2018
CRAR (%) 672.35 46.04 55.20
CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 66.10 4479 54.15 |
CRAR - Tier Il capital (%) 125 125 105
Amount of Subordinated debt raised as Tier - II capital . . -
Amount raised by iasueofperpetual debt instruments - - G

(i) Movement of Non Performing Assets (NPAs)
(Amounis in ¥ lakhs)
Asat As at As at

31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 | 1st April, 2018
Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.98% 0.25% "
Movement of NPAs (Gross)
|Opening baiance 454.47 140821 -
Additions during the year 1,200.76 45447 140821
Reductions during the year 356.93 140821 5
| Closing balance 1,298.30 45147 1,408.21
Movement of NPAs (Net)
|Opening balance 18743 - -
Additions durmg the year 721,51 18743 =
Reductions during the year 125.26 e -
| Closing balance 783.69 187.43 -
Movement of provisions for NPAs {excluding
provisions on standard assets)
Oodaing balabes i 108
Provisions made during the year 47925 267.03 1408.21
Write-off of emm provisions 231.67 140821 2
Closing balance 514.61 267.03 1408.21

Note: The above figures are being reported as per IND AS methodology and the current year Gross NPA includes
¥ 150 lakhs and the current year provisions include ¥ 17.37 lakhs on account of substandard asset as per IRACP
Norms.

(iil) Sector-wise NFAs

Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector

Sectors As al As at Asat

31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019| 1st April, 2018
Y % %

Agriculture & allled activities - - -

|Corpora13 borrowers - 0.11% 3.81%
Services - 1.28% -
Unsecured personal loans - - -
Auto loans - - -
[Other personal loans - - -

The above excludes NPAs of T 0.73 lakhs as at 31st March, 2020 (X 10.29 lakhs as at 31st March, 2019 and ¥ Nil as
atistAprﬂ,zms) hmpedofhmsnotﬁlhngmﬂleahovesecwrmfomauonaboutloammm
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7. Disclosures ay roquired under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financlal Company - Bystenically Impostant Non-Deposit taking Contpany and Depoait taking Company

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (contd.)
{iv) Malurity pattern of ceriain items of sssels and Habilities for the year ended Sist March, 2020
(Asuounts s € lakhs)
Upto Overl Over2 Over3 Overé Overiyear | Owerdywr Over
1 month monfhupte | mentheupte | monthsnpto | monfhsmpto | upto 3 yesr upto 5 year 5 yems
2 months 3 months 6 monthe 1year
e posits - - o - - - - - -
(G -} G (] 3] e i) ] e
Advances# 148490 o8 L GSL0|  12NEy6|  BAELKG) 1250633 L s BB
@lsiy) (,469.67) o (57759  @a27E)  @LoLEn (55916 (116039 (764185
833286 432.86 7.7 §,564.29 8,905.595 1652064 93120 - 4244730
[lwvestments = - 2 5,063.04 i) 2 : 5 Lot
{1,950.86) 0 © D o] 7] 3] t 0950586}
= - = = 358.15 _—— e = 22,16
Batraligsd 92206 S| igma)  sewib|  J@7LS|  Mas) 3800 - | amn
117.89 1858.75 655.75 1,250.86 4,275.06 5,739.29 - - 1391761
Foreign Cumency amsels - - - - - - . g -
a & ) i = (2] 2] =) )
Forelgn Currency Liabilities = . % ¢ : = 5 K =
o) 4 7] i Ly 0 € ] 0
Notes:

() Figures in brackets are the cozresponding figures in respect of the previous year
{if) Figures In italics ave the correspending figures as of 1st April, 2018,
# Represents interest bearing loans, infer corporate deposits and interest accrued thereon.
.mwmm&ﬂmﬂmmmmm“mmnymlymmmmulthhhmedmdnhoﬂlﬂ.ﬂhﬂnmn

Maxch, 2019: € 5,264.65 lakha and 1st April, 2018: €2,035.83 lakhe) s included in the pmonnts disclosed in "Over 6 months uplo 1 year® category above.
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47. Disclosures as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016: (contd.)}

(v) Schedule to the balancesheet
Liabilities: (Amounts in T lakhs)
Amount Amount
ouistanding ovexrdue

(1) Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) Debentures
(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits*)
(i) Secured 4,203.60 s
(i) Unsecured ¥ 2
(b) Deferred credits -
{c) Term loans 33,331.86 .
{d) Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 5176.16 -
{e) Commercial paper = =
(f) Public deposits* - -
(g) Other loans (Joans repayable on demand from banks) 40.61
* Please see note 1 below
(2) Break-up of (1}{f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest arcrued thereon but not paid) :
(a) In the form of unsecured debentures . -
{b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there
is a shortfall in the value of security - -
(c) Other public deposits — =
* Please see note 1 below




47. Disclosures as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016: (contd.)

(¥) Schedule to the balancesheet (contd.)
Assels: (Amounts in T lakhs)
Amount
outstanding

(3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included
in (4) below, net of provisions]:
{a) Secured 64,054.12
(b) Unsecured 13,523.70
(4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards asset
financing activities:
(i} Lease assets inchuding lease rentals under sundry debtors :
{a) Financial lease
(b) Operating lease
(i) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
(a) Assets on hire 5
{(b) Repossessed assets -
(iii) Other loans counting towards asset financing activities:
(2) Loans where assets have been repossessed ;
(k) Loans other than (a) above -
(5) Break-up of Investments:
Current Investments
1. Quoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity 2
{b) Preference =
(ii) Debentures and Bonds 8,063.0¢
(iif) Units of mutunl funds =
(iv) Government Securities -
(v) Others E
2 Unquoted
(i) Shares
(a) Equity
(b) Preference
{il) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others
Long Term investments
1. Quoted
(i) Share
{a) Equity
{b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others
2 Unquoted
{i) Shares
(a) Equity -
(b) Preference -
(ii) Debentures and Bonds -
(idi) Units of mutual funds -
(iv) Government Securities -
{v) Others

L L] L] L] L}

L] Ll L L L ¥




47. Disclosures as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financlal Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016: (contd.)

(v) Schedule to the balancesheet (contd.)
(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:

Please see note 2 below.
Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total
1 Related Parties **
{a) Subsidiaries =

(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties

- -

2 Other than related parties 64,054.12 15,523.70 77,577.82
Total 64,054.12 13,523.70 77,577.82
(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities|
(both quoted and unquoted):
Please see note 3 below
Category Market Value/| Book Value
Break up or fair (Net of
valueor NAV | Provisions)
1 Related Parties **
(a) Subsidiaries - -
(b) Companies in the same group - -
() Other related parties - -
2 Other than related partics 8,063.04 8,063.04
Total = a

** As per Accounting Standard of ICAI [see note 3]
(8) Other information:
Particulars
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
{(a) Related parties
(b) Other then related parties
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(2) Related parties
{b) Other than related parties
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt
Notes:

1. As defined in point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter-2 of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve|
Benk) Directions, 2016.

2. Provisioning norms shall be applicable as prescribed in the aforesaid Directions.

3. All Accounting Standards and Guidance Notes issued by ICAI are applicable including for valuation of
investments and other assets as also assets acquired in satisfaction of debt, However, market value in
respect of quoted investments and break up/fair value/NAV in respect of unquoted investments shall be
disclosed irrespective of whether they are classified as long term or current in (5) above.

763.69
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47. Disclosures as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company snd Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016: {contd.)

{(Amounts in ¥ lakhs)
Axal Asat Asat
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 | 1st April, 2018
(vl)llnvenhnenb
1. |Value of Investments

{2) Gross Value of Investments ‘
(i) In India 8,063.04 1,950.86 353.15
(i) Outside India o - 5

8,063.04 1,950.85 353.15
(b) Provisions for Depreciation
(i) In India - - -
{ii) Outside India 2 - -
(c) Net Value of Investments o
(1) In India B063.04 1,950.86 353.15
(ii) Outside India 5 - 1

8,063.04 1,950.86 353.15

2 |Movement of provisions held towards depreciation
(a) Opening balance 5 . U
{b) Add: Provisions made during the year - - L
() Less: Write-off/write-back of Provisions

during the year E .
(d) Closing balance - = i

(vﬂ)lDeuﬂl of Assignment transactions undertaken

(a) |No. of accounts . . -
(b) |Aggregate value {net of provisions) of accounts sold - - -
{c) |[Aggregate consideration & = R
(d) | Additional consideration realized in respect of
accounts transferred in eatlier years 3 - -
le) |AggTogate gain/loss over net book value - - -

(vit1)| During the year, the Company has neither purchased nor sold any non-performing financial assets from/to other NBFC's
(Previous year: Nil).

(1){Exposures
(A) Expoemre 1o Real Entae Sectar
(a){ Direct Exposure
(1) Residential Mortgages-
Lending fully secured by morigages on residential
property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or
thatis rented 16,330.17 10,054.57 375.20
(if)| Commercial Real Estate- ;
Lending secured by morigages on commercial real
estates (office buildings, retall space, multi-purpose
commercial premises, mult-family residential
buildings, multi-tenanted conunercial —
industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, <L
development and construction, efc.). Exposure shall , N
also include non-fund based limits ?;;fr- N
22,866A7 11,396.69 3,627 54| { )
(ili})| Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) A
and other secaritized exposures- Q’% -
Residential - - - Nt
Commercial Real Estate : . i -5
(b)| Indirect Exposure-
Fund based & non fund based exposure on National
Housging Bank (NHB) & Housing Pinance Company o
(HFCs) - - A AL
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 39,196,564 2145126 4,002.76 ] = <
)
\ N
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47. Disclosures as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Finaneisl Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016: (contd.)
(Amonnts in € lakhs)
As at As at As at
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019 | 1st April, 2018

(ix}|Exposures (contd.)

(B)Ex_pumh&_?lhlhhrkﬂ

&) Directhvenﬂmthemﬂtydnra,merublem
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented
mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invested in corporate debt;

{li) |Advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other
securities or on clean basls to individuals for
investment in shares (induding IPOs/ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of
equity-orlented mutual finds; 1,340.89 1,336.50 1,582.75

{iif) | Advances for any other purposes where shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or umits of
equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary

||ﬂet-'lmlr 1,951.39 519.36 375.20
{iv) | Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured
by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds
or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented
muttual funds Le. where the primary security other than
shares/convertible bonds/convertible
debentures/units of equity orlented mutual funds
'does not fully cover the advances;

(v) |Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and

guarantees ismued on behalf of stockbrokers and market
makers; = - -
{vi) [Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of
shares/bonds/debentures or other securiies or on
clean basls for meeting promoter's contribution to the
equity of new companies in anticipation of raising
resources; - - -
(vii){ Bridge Joans to companies against expected equity
flows/issues; - -
(viiij All exposures to Venture Capital Funds {both
regialmedandume_ghmed) . - -

Total Expasure to Capital Market 329228 1,855.86 1,957.96

(x) Provisions and Contingencies (Amounts in ¥ lakhs)
Break up of Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under Asat Asat

the head expenditure in Statement of Profit and Loss 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
(a) Frovisions for depreciation on Investment - S
(b) Provision towards NPA 23021 267.03
(¢) Provision made towards Income tax 568.81 778.48
(d) Other Provision and Contingencies (with details) . -
{¢) Provision for Standard Assets 926.07 794.59




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

47. Disclosures as required under Master Direction - Non-Banking Financlal Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016: (contd.)

(xd) Concentration of Advances {(Amounts in € lakhs)
As at Asat Asat
31st March, 31t March, 2019 | 1st April, 2018

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 31,553.19 40,747.63 39,679.30

Percentage of Advances o twenty largest borrowers to Total

Advances of the applicable NBFC 38.59%)| 53.16% 94.17%
{pcif) | Concentration of Exposures

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest

borrowers/customers to Total Exposure of the applicable

NBFC on borrowers/ customers 38.59%, 53.16% 94.17%
(i) | Concentration of NPAs

Total Exposure to i:;[ﬁ four NPA accounts 575,597 21349 1.409.12
(xiv)|Off-balance Sheet SFVs sponsored

Domestic ' - - -

|Overseas - - .

et Conats T
No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - - -
No. of complaints received during the year {1} - -
No. of complaints redressed during the year 10 - -
No. of comiplaints pending at the end of the vear - - -

{xvl) DehihofSlngleBmqumﬂmdBmGroupUmﬁeededbyﬂquymy:

During the current year and previous years (FY 2019-20 and FY 2018-19), the Company's credit exposure to single
borrowers and group borrowers were within the Hmits prescribed by the RBL

{xvii) Derivatives

During the current year and previous years (FY 2019-20 and FY 2018-19), the Company has not entered into any forward
rate agreements neither traded into any interest rate derivatives.

(xviii) Disclosures relating to securitisation
Durhg&necmentymmdpreviousym{FYZﬂledFYzms-lﬂ,&leCompanylmnotmteredintomy
securitisation transactions. The Company has neither sponsored any Special Purpose Vehicle for securitisation
transactions nor has sold any financial assets to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction.

(xix) Registration obtained from other financlal sector regulators

Mﬂngmecumtymmd&epeﬂmymwm&ﬂmdwmw),ﬂnwhsmobmmdmy
registration from other financial sector regulators.

(xx) Rating assigned by eredit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

During the year under review,CARE Ratings reaffirmed their rating for the Long term and Short term debt programme of
the Company. The Company has been assigned the rating of A+(CE) for its Long Term bank facilities for ¥ 750 crores and
A1+(CE) for its Commercial Paper issuance for ¥ 100 crores. CARE Rating has additionally assigned the rating of A+ (CE)
to principal protected Market Linked Debenture issuance for 100 crore by the Company. CE (Credit Enhancement)
rep:esmhﬂmtﬂ\ebonow:hgauebachdbyﬂmOurpunteGurmlmofAmbitPﬁvaheHnﬂted.CARERaﬂnghn
assigned an unsupported rating of A (Stable) to the Company, These ratings are backed by corparate guarantee of Ambit
Private Limited, the holding company.

{d) During the current year and the previons years (FY 2019-20 and FY 2018-19) there are no penalties levied by RBL

(i) During the current year and the previous years (FY 2019-20 and FY 2018-19), the Company has not financed any of the
Parent Company's products.




AMBIT FINVEST FRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

48. Disclosures as required under Circular No. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 of Reserve Bank of

India-

(Amounts in T lakhs)
Particulars Asget Gross Loss Net Provisions | Difference
classification | Carrying |Allowances| Camrying |required as| between Ind
as per Amount |(Provisions)| Amount per AS109
Ind A5 109 asper | asrequired IRACP provisions
Ind AS under Ind norms and IRACP
AS109 norms
) @ (&) € (5)=(3)-8) (6) 7) =@
Performing Assets
Standard [see footnote to note 47(i)] Stage 1 7658566 | 150276 | 75,08290| 30638 |  1,9642
. Stage 2 872535| 72884 29951 29.30 699.54
Subtotal 80SI1L0L| 225160 | 78,07941| 33568 18959
Non-l'erfomtn; Assets (NPQ_! i .
[Substandard Stage 3 1,042.76 461.88 580.88 21953 242.35
Doubtful - ug to1 year Stage 3 105.52 35.36 70.18 33.11 225
1io3yeans Stage’ - : - -
More than 3 yea:s Stage 3 - - -
Subtotal for doubtfu‘l Loss Stage 3 . . - - -
Su‘blntal for NPA 1,148.30 497.24 651.06 252.64 244.60
Other items such as guarantees, loan Stage 1 - = - -
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of
Ind AS 109 but not covered under current | Stage2 ] i
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and
Provisioning (IRACP) norms Stage 3 1 i
|Bubtotal - 5 - - -
Total Stage 1 7658566 | 150276| 7508290 30638 | 119642
Stage 2 3,725.35 728.84 |  2,996.51 29.30 699.54
Stage 3 114830 |  49724|  65.06| 25264 244.60
8145931 | 272884 | 7873047 588.28 2,140.56




AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

49. The Company is in the business of granting of loans/making investments being Non-Banking Finance
Company, which is the only operating segment.

50. Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circulars dated March 27, 2020 and May 22, 2020 allowing lending
institutions to offer moratorium to borrowers on payment of instalments falling due between March 1, 2020
and August 31, 2020, the Company has extended moratorium to its borrowers in accordance with its Board

approved policy.

In management’s view and considering the guidance provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, providing moratorium to borrowers at a mass scale, based on RBI directives, by itself is not considered
to result in a significant increase in credit risk ('SICR’) for such borrowers. The Company has carried out
provisions for ECL after factoring management overlay allowance, an increased risk of deterioration in macro-
economic factors caused by COVID-19 pandemic. Given the unique nature and scale of the economic impact
of this pandemic, and its timing being close to the year-end, the ECL is based on various variables and
assumptions, which could result in actual credit loss being different than that being estimated. In the event
ﬂleimpactissevereorprolongedthananticipated,tlﬁswillhaveaoorrespondingimpactomthecarrying
value of the financial assets, results of operation and the financial position of the Company.

51. Events after reporting date
There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in these financial statements.

In terms of our report attached
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP On behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005 3._,._»_—6/ @U{f-‘{ M
((’c 7 g _L//;,’—Q Sanjay Sakhuja Sanjay Dhoka

Whole Time Director and Whole Time Director,

per Shrawan Jalan Executive Chairman CFO and COO
Partner -
Membership Number: 102102
Mumbai, @&QQQ"J'
. Amrita Pillai
. Company Secretary

Mumbai,
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Chartered Accountants Mumbai - 400 028, India

Tel: +91 22 6819 8000

Auditor’s Report to the Board of Directors pursuant to Master Directions — Non-Banking Financial

Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

To the Board of Directors of
Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Ref: Report to the Board of Directors pursuant to Master Directions — Non-Banking Financial Companies
Auditor's Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) and
amended from time to time (the “Auditor’s Report Directions”) for the year ended March 31, 2020

1.

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Ambit Finvest Private Limited (the “Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and issued our audit opinion dated
June 24, 2020 thereon. These Ind AS financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility was to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit. Our audit was conducted in the manner specified under the section “Auditor’s
Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements” of the said audit report.
We also draw reference to the section “Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements” in the Audit Report which applies to this
report.

The Ind AS financial statements, referred to in paragraph 1 above, have been prepared by the
Company as per the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, read with the RBI notification no. DOR
(NBFC).CC.PD.N0.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 regarding “Implementation of Indian
Accounting Standards” and the relevant requirements of Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued by the RBI (the “NBFC Master Directions”) (collectively, the
“Ind AS Accounting Framework”).

As required by the Auditor’'s Report Directions, based on our audit referred to in paragraph 1 above
and based on the information and explanations given to us which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for this purpose, we report hereunder on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Auditor’s Report Directions:

i) The Company has been engaged in the business of a Non-Banking Financial Institution
(‘NBFTI’) as defined in section 45-I(a) of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (the “Act”) during
the year ended March 31, 2020, requiring it to hold a Certificate of Registration (“CoR”) under
section 45-IA of the Act. The Company is registered with the RBI as an NBFC without
accepting public deposits vide CoR number N-13.01927 dated May 04, 2009.

ii) The Company is entitled to continue to hold such CoR in terms of its principal business criteria
(financial assets/income pattern) as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020.

iii) The net owned fund (“NOF”) of the Company as of March 31, 2020, determined in accordance
with the Ind AS Accounting Framework, is in compliance with the requirement as laid down in
NBFC Master Directions.

iv) The Board of Directors have passed a resolution on April 03, 2020 for non-acceptance of any
public deposits;

v) The capital adequacy ratio as of March 31, 2020, disclosed in the NBS-7 return (revised basis
the audited accounts) resubmitted to the RBI on July 22, 2020 has been correctly determined
in accordance with the Ind AS Accounting Framework and such ratio is in compliance with the
minimum capital to risk assets ratio (“CRAR”) prescribed in the NBFC Master Directions.

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4294
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700 016



SR. BatLiBoi1 & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

vi) As mentioned in paragraph 2 above, the Ind AS financial statements have been prepared by
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS Accounting Framework which significantly differs
from the erstwhile accounting standards specified in the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006, as amended, the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the requirements of
the NBFC Master Directions (collectively, the “Previous Accounting Framework”). Accordingly,
the Company’s compliances with the prudential norms on income recognition, accounting
standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as specified in the
NBFC Master Directions have not been commented upon.

vii) The Company has furnished to the RBI, within the stipulated period, annual statement of
capital funds, risk assets/exposures and risk asset ratio (Form NBS-7), as specified in the
NBFC Returns Directions. Further, as informed by the management, such returns have been
prepared in accordance with the Previous Accounting Framework.

4. We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date
of our audit opinion mentioned in paragraph 1.

5. This report is issued solely for reporting on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Auditor’s
Report Directions, to the Board of Directors and is not to be used or distributed for any other purpose.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005
SHRAWAN i
KUMAR JALAN erasnaninsiangsbin
Date: 2020.07.23 14:29:36 +05'30"
per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No: 102102
UDIN: 20102102AAABQI2895

Mumbai
July 23, 2020
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Acumen at work

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 14™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (“AGM”) OF
THE MEMBERS OF AMBIT FINVEST PRIVATE LIMITED (“THE COMPANY”) WILL BE
HELD ON TUESDAY, JULY 28, 2020 AT 12.00 P.M. (IST) VIA VIDEO CONFERENCING (VC)/
OTHER AUDIO VISUAL MEANS (OAVM), TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2020, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon;

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2020, the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as presented at the
meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

By Order of the Board
For Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Amrita Pillai
Company Secretary
Mumbai, July 20, 2020
Registered Office:
Ambit House, 449,
Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel,
Mumbai — 400013
Website : https://finvest.ambit.co

Ambit Fnvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+ 91 22 3982 1819

wwwambit.co CIN: U65999MH2 006PTC163257.
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In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has
vide its circular dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General
Meeting (AGM) through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a
common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and MCA
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. Hence, the Members can
attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM only.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2019-2020 dated April 8, 2020 and since this AGM is being
held pursuant via VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the
AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

The Corporate Members are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPEG Format) of its Board
Resolution/ Authority Letter etc. pursuant to the Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013
authorizing their representative to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM on its behalf and to vote
at the meeting. The said Resolution/ Authorization shall be sent through its registered email
address to compliance@ambit.co.

Members who have not yet registered their email address are requested to register it with the
Company.

Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning
the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, Notice of AGM along with the Annual Report
2019-2020 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses
are registered with the Company. Members may note that the Notice and the Annual Report
2019-2020 will also be available on the website of the Company (finvest.ambit.co).

At the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on August 16, 2019, the
Members approved the appointment of M/s S R Batliboi & Co, LLP Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration Number 301003E/E300005) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office
for a period of five years from the conclusion of that AGM till the conclusion of the Eighteenth
Annual General Meeting. The requirement of placing the ratification of the appointment of
Statutory Auditors by the Members has been done away with by the Companies (Amendment)
Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for
ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the fourteenth AGM.

Ambit Fnvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2 006PTC163257.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE
AS UNDER:

1.

Members will be able to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM at (https://meet.google.com/ikz-
ipgf-ess)

The facility to join the AGM via VC / OAVM shall remain open 15 minutes before and after the
scheduled time of the AGM and shall be available to the Members on the first come first served
basis. This will not include large Members (Members holding 2% or more shareholding),
Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to
attend the AGM without the restriction on account of first come first serve basis.

Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance from their registered email address
mentioning their name, PAN, Folio Number, mobile number at compliance@ambit.co from July
21, 2020 (9.00 am ) to July 27, 2020 (5.00 pm). Those Members who have registered themselves
as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The
Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of
time for the AGM.

The Members who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their queries
in advance till July 27, 2020 (5.00 pm) mentioning their name, PAN, folio number mobile
number at compliance@ambit.co.

By Order of the Board
For Ambit Finvest Private Limited

Amrita Pillai
Company Secretary

Mumbai, July 20, 2020
Registered Office:

Ambit House, 449,

Senapati Bapat Marg,

Lower Parel,

Mumbai — 400013

Website : https://finvest.ambit.co

Ambit Fnvest Private Limited
Ambit House, 449, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 India T:+91 22 3982 1819
www.ambit.co CIN: U65999MH2 006PTC163257.
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